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Dear Fellow Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of Moiselle
International Holdings Limited (“Moiselle” or the “Company”), |
present the results of the Company and its subsidiaries (which
are collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2019 (the “Year”).

MARKET OVERVIEW

The operating environment for the sector of retailing fashion
apparel and accessories was very difficult as the emergence of
e-commerce and fast fashion have changed the consumption
patterns and consumer preferences drastically. The needs and
wants for fashion apparel, especially those of the younger
generation, have been changing rapidly. The young consumers,
namely those in the age group of 20s to early 30s, rely more on
the information that they access on internet and, in particular,
social media. They are more prone to follow the fashion trends
which are shared in the peer group, usually through social
media. They also prefer to buy apparel of fast fashion for mass
market at lower prices, discounts or with coupons. Traditional
brands which are geared towards the niche markets, especially
high-end and upper-middle markets, will find it even more
challenging to adapt themselves to the situation when they try to
attract younger consumers in order to maintain the volume of
business in the long run. They have to juggle the tasks of
developing online stores, maintaining the business of
brick-and-mortar stores and adjusting their product mix or even

the positioning of some of their products.

The operating environment was also complicated by the ongoing
Sino-United States trade war and China’s slowing economic
growth that dampened the consumer appetite for prestige
products — they prefer more affordable products such as fast
fashion apparel instead. Rising costs, especially those of rents
which had already been exorbitant in some prime locations in
Hong Kong and first-tier cities of mainland China, also

exacerbated the situation.
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RESULTS

The Group mainly engages in retailing women's fashion apparel
and menswear to high-end and upper-middle markets. The
Company recorded a loss of HK$19,841,000 for the Year mainly
because of the decrease in revenue from the business of fashion
apparel and accessories in the challenging operating
environment, especially that in Hong Kong and China, and due
to the consistent increases in rents, labour cost and other related
operating expenses. The Company continued to rationalize its
retail network by closing down underperforming stores.
However, the remaining stores could not make up for the absent
revenue that had been previously generated from the now closed
stores. This led to the decrease in revenue. As a result, turnover
decreased by 13.6% to HK$251,021,000.

The Group’s businesses in Hong Kong accounted for 55.6% of
its turnover while that in mainland China contributed to 13.9%.
Operations in Macau, Taiwan and Singapore made up 30.5% of
the Group’s revenue. Gross profit margin was 81.8% for the
Year, compared with the 76.3% for the previous financial year
ended 31 March 2018 (the “Previous Financial Year”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The rapidly growing popularity of online shopping, especially
among the young consumers, has affected both the footfall and
business at fashion apparel firms’ brick-and-mortar retail shops.
The emergence of fast fashion, which was principally targeted at
the mass market, has also posed a severe challenge to fashion
brands which are geared towards the niche markets, particularly
the high-end and upper-middle markets. Another important
factor is the change in the customer base — a niche fashion
brand has to attract younger consumers to maintain the volume
of business in the long run. It will have to adapt itself to their

preferences and consumption patterns.
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To stay competitive, the Group has taken a four-pronged
approach, namely the enhancement of the shopping experience
at retail outlets, the expansion of its electronic commerce
business, stepping up its effort to create and market trendy,
stylish fashion and accessories, and increasing the portion of the
mid-range, ready-to-wear fashion apparel in the total number of

stock keeping units (SKU).

The Group has changed the mode of operations at its shops from
merely selling goods to enhancing the shopping experience. For
instance, the Group opened THE EARTH STORE at the Elements,
a large shopping mall in West Kowloon, Hong Kong in March of
2018. Such elements as lifestyle, art and environmental
awareness have been incorporated into the store’s interior
decoration and the theme activities and marketing campaigns

conducted there.

To cope with the increasing competition from electronic
commerce, the Group expanded its online retail and marketing
operations. In October 2018, the Group opened an online
platform for sales and marketing in WeChat Mall on a popular
social media WeChat in mainland China. On that online
platform, the Group places advertisements for its products in the
form of banners and conducted marketing activities. The move
followed the Group’s earlier efforts to develop electronic
commerce: In November 2017, it opened its online store under
the brands of MOISELLE and Rosamund MOISELLE at the
electronic commerce website VIP.com, which specializes in
online discount sales and is operated by Vipshop (“BEFRE” in
Chinese). Back in November 2016, the Group opened its online
store under the MOISELLE brand at Tmall, one of China’s
popular online shopping websites. It also continued to leverage
the social media to promote its brands and products through

cooperation with some celebrities and key opinion leaders.
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To keep pace with the fast-changing fashion trends, the Group
conducted events such as fashion shows more frequently to
debut more new products while maintaining its distinctive
designs. For instance, it organized a fashion show titled “Stop
the Air Traffic” at Hong Kong International Airport in August
2018. Celebrities and famous models wore and paraded its new
products at the event, which was the third in a series of fashion
shows under the theme “Stop the Traffic”. The earlier two were
“Stop the Traffic” in Duddell Street and “Stop the Sea Traffic” in

Victoria Harbour.

The Group also strengthened its business presence in mainland
China by participating in the Shanghai Fashion Week which was
organized by the Shanghai Fashion Designers Association (“ L&
FREE:E 5% E”) and the Shanghai International Fashion Center
(" L SEIFF AREEAR &M ") and hosted by the Shanghai Municipal
Government in Shanghai in October 2018. In the event, the new
product series of MOISELLE and Rosamund MOISELLE for the
spring/summer of 2019 were shown. Under the Rosamund
MOISELLE brand, the Group debuted such new products as
sportswear and down apparel that incorporated fashion

elements.

To reinforce the images of its house brands MOISELLE and
Rosamund MOISELLE, the Group and the famous photographer
Russell James jointly organized a photography exhibition,
Iconics, in Shanghai as part of a contemporary art fair Art021 in
November 2018. The exhibition featured Russell James’
photographs of celebrities and movie stars that accentuated the
subjects’ personalities. Among the subjects photographed was
Ms. Rosamund Kwan, who is both the spokesperson and a
provider of the design concept of Rosamund MOISELLE’s

products.
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Meanwhile, the Group continued to pursue its diverse-product,
multi-brand strategy by strengthening the operation of its
m.d.m.s stores and M Concept stores where the Group sold its
diffusion lines under one roof. It opened an M Concept store at a
shopping mall called PopCorn in Tseung Kwan O in May 2018.
It also increased its efforts to market and sell the accessories and
leather goods under a French brand LANCASTER through
distributorship by opening one more shop under the brand in
Hong Kong. Moreover, the Group has been shifting its focus to
the market of young customers in Hong Kong by gearing some of
its products towards their tastes and by introducing products of a

wider price range.

To cope with the difficult operating environment for the past
four financial years, the Group had been implementing various
measures, including the rationalization of its retail network
through the closure of underperforming stores or relocation;
stringent cost management; cost-effective sales and marketing
initiatives such as the provision of a VIP club membership
service (organizing the members’ visits to its product showrooms
for purchasing goods) in Hong Kong and the adoption of an
online-to-offline business model through alliances with mainland
Chinese online shopping website operators such as Tmall,

Vipshop and WeChat Mall by leveraging social media.

For its endeavors to develop business, the Group is honoured to
obtain the “Listed Company Awards of Excellence for 2018”
from Hong Kong Economic Journal and “2018 Listed Companies
Distinguished Awards” from TVB Finance & Information

Channel.



Moiselle International Holdings Limited % i I ¥ 48 M & B 2 ¥l
Annual Report 2019 4 4 #

R

Chairman’s Statement

RE

RERK  AEBKEBERBHATERE - Gl
AEBBBSHRERLE  DEBNLENES
B IREHNAKREE B ZZ5EHAUER
ZEEEEAZMRERNEHEREFEENS
Fi- AERBLAAIRZEEHEOEFRTIMNBHA
BB 14 AR B B A B EC B © ROR - ARE TS ERE
= BUE B9 R 42 1 B 5 3R B AR b S A o

RE-TBRREDEANMBTS  ANEEGTESREA
REFHDHEBEF  EEMMABEATSERD
RHANEBUXBHRERGNESD  REAKESK
REEHEY RN AEERELETAEHER
=R

REFTABEBMS  FARESERQNEEEFRE
HESEES  URSDEBERP L HEDERE
BY - AKETKEMAEERLHEBSARTEN
B is AREFEY AT RE - RO EFEB TR ELHETH
REFHRHAESERO AT

ARBEENR  AEENZEERRTEEEL
FINEMASRTETAR MAEFEEARARE
ERBEFEENEMAS  HEKEAREERE
2 RERDRNEMNRLSE -

FBAEEREIEERAARENEZ IR EED
SHIREEZ L - ARER BRI ESEBERE R
B LUERARE LTS -

OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to rationalise its retail
network. For instance, it will try to strengthen its stores in the
locations of strategic importance, namely the stores in the prime
locations in Hong Kong and Shanghai that can serve to advertise
its house-brand products and function as meeting places for its
important customers. At such stores, the Group can also
introduce new fashion apparel and lifestyle accessories to
customers. In the future, it will also only open stores for

diffusion lines in remote locations with lower rents.

To further develop the market of mainland China, the Group will
cooperate with certain agents or distributors who can find
suitable locations for its shops and advise it on how to operate
such stores efficiently as they are familiar with the domestic
market conditions and have an established network of business

contacts.

As for its electronic commerce business, the Group will try to
offer membership coupons to prospective customers in an
attempt to entice them from its online shops to brick-and-mortar
stores. It will also study the feasibility of providing fashion
apparel that is suitable for online sales to the mass market and
that of investing more resources in the promotional activities

conducted by some e-commerce platform operators.

To raise the efficiency of its operations, the Group has already
upgraded the information system for its retail outlets and retail
management department. It is now upgrading the information
system for its production and inventory management. Such work
on the information system for its product management,

warehouses and logistics will follow later.

All these measures are aimed at enhancing the Group’s
competitiveness and at adapting it to the rapid changes in the
market. The Group will monitor closely the economic conditions
and fashion trends in the markets and may adjust the above

plans accordingly.
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all our
shareholders and our fellow business partners for their support,
and our management and staff for their hard work and

dedication to the Group during the Year.

Chan Yum Kit

Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 June 2019
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OVERVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Mainly targeting the markets for luxurious apparel, the Group
operates such house brands as MOISELLE, m.d.m.s., GERMAIN
and Rosamund MOISELLE, while engaging in distributorship for
international brand LANCASTER. Each of the brands has its own
distinctive consumer base, and is being developed separately by
the Group’s dedicated and talented designer teams. The Group
retails its products under the various brands at stores in prime
locations. As at 31 March 2019, the Group had 50 stores and
counters in Hong Kong, first- and second-tier cities of mainland
China, Macau, Taiwan and Singapore, down from 59 as at 31
March 2018 because it rationalized its retail network in the

challenging business environment.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS BY LOCATION

Operations in Hong Kong

Revenue from the Group’s operations in Hong Kong decreased
by 10.3% to approximately HK$139,610,000 for the Year
because of the fierce competition from electronic commerce, the
fundamental change in the nature of the customer base,
exorbitant rents and the unfavourable economic conditions that
dampened the consumer appetite for luxury goods. When it
comes to fashion apparel, consumers preferred more affordable
fast fashion which is targeted at the mass market. MOISELLE is
positioned as a fashion brand for the niche markets, namely the
high-end and upper-middle markets so it has been working out
ways to cope with the more volatile fashion apparel market
which has been shaped by electronic commerce and fast

fashion.

For instance, it enhanced the shopping experience at its retail
stores by incorporating such elements as lifestyle, art and
environmental awareness into interior decoration and increased
efforts to create and market trendy, stylish fashion which were
targeted at the city’s young locals. It has been increasing the
portion of ready-to-wear fashion apparel designed for work and
the middle market in the total number of stock keeping units
(SKU).

11
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It also pressed ahead with its diverse-product, multi-brand
strategy. On one hand, it reinforced its house brands MOISELLE
and Rosamund MOISELLE by running THE EARTH STORE. On
the other hand, it tried to strengthen the business of its diffusion
lines by opening an M CONCEPT store. It also stepped up the
development of the brand LANCASTER by opening one more
shop under that brand in the city.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group operated 9 MOISELLE, 3
m.d.m.s., 2 LANCASTER and 1T M CONCEPT retail stores as well
as 3 outlets (As at 31 March 2018: 9 MOISELLE, 5 m.d.m.s. and
1 LANCASTER retail stores and 3 outlets).

Operations in mainland China

Revenue from its operations in mainland China fell by 28.3% to
approximately HK$34,795,000 for the Year because they were
faced with intense competition from electronic commerce. High
rents for shop spaces also exerted severe downward pressure on
the profitability. To cope with the challenging operating
environment, the Group expanded its operation of online sales
and marketing by opening an online platform in WeChat Mall on
a popular social media WeChat in October 2018. The move was
a follow-up effort to adopt an online-to-offline business model
through alliances with mainland Chinese online shopping
website operators. It has earlier opened online stores at Tmall

and Vipshop.

The Group also enhanced its business presence in the country
by participating in the Shanghai Fashion Week in October 2018.
In the event, the new product series of MOISELLE and Rosamund
MOISELLE for the spring/summer of 2019 were debuted.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group operated 14 MOISELLE retail
stores in the country (As at 31 March 2018: 14 MOISELLE retail

stores).
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Operations in Macau

For the Year, the Group operated five shops at the Venetian
Macao Resort Hotel and one shop at the Parisian Macao Hotel,
including 2 M CONCEPT, 2 MOISELLE, 1 m.d.m.s. and 1
LANCASTER retail stores in the city (As at 31 March 2018: 2
concept stores, M CONCEPT, 2 MOISELLE, 1 m.d.m.s. and 1
LANCASTER retail stores). The combined revenue generated by
the six retail stores edged down to approximately
HK$48,388,000, accounting for about 19.3% of the Group’s

revenue.

Operations in Taiwan

The Group decreased the number of its stores substantially in
Taiwan during the Year because of the unsatisfactory
performance of its operations there amid the unfavourable
economic conditions. As a result, revenue decreased by 29.5%
to approximately HK$19,186,000, accounting for about 7.6% of
the Group’s revenue for the Year. The Group operated 5
MOISELLE, 1 m.d.m.s. and 1 LANCASTER retail stores as well as
1 outlet as at 31 March 2019 in Taiwan (As at 31 March 2018:
11 MOISELLE, 2 m.d.m.s. and 2 LANCASTER retail stores as well

as 3 outlets).

Operations in Singapore
The Group’s business in Singapore recorded a 14.1% decrease
in revenue to approximately HK$9,042,000 during the year. As
at 31 March 2019, the Group ran 2 MOISELLE stores and 2
LANCASTER retail stores.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Overview

The Group’s turnover decreased by approximately 13.6% to
approximately HK$251,021,000 (2018: HK$290,576,000) during
the year ended 31 March 2019 as compared with 2018. Due to
the deterioration in performance of the markets in mainland
China, the revenue of the segment outside Hong Kong decreased
by approximately 17.4% to approximately HK$111,411,000
(2018: HK$134,960,000) during the year ended 31 March 2019
as a result. The segment turnover ratio had maintained at slightly
lower level of approximately 44.4% (2018: 46.4%) compared
with that of the year ended 31 March 2018.

The revenue earned from Hong Kong segment also decreased by
approximately 10.3% to approximately HK$139,610,000 (2018:
HK$155,616,000) which was mainly due to the high
competitiveness in retail operating environment and
unfavourable trade and business atmosphere of local market

during the financial year.

During the year, the Group’s gross profit margin was
approximately 81.8%, as compared to 76.3% of the previous
year. The gross profit margin remained in the normal range of
gross margin of the Group across years. Operating expenses for
the year ended 31 March 2019 totalled approximately
HK$257,954,000, compared to approximately HK$249,167,000
for 2018, increased by approximately 3.5%. Although the
management had conducted various measures in stringent cost
management to counteract high operating expenses, mainly staff
costs and rental expenses, the Group suffered an operating loss
of HK$44,905,000 (2018: HK$21,622,000).

The loss attributable to the equity shareholders for the year
ended 31 March 2019 was approximately HK$19,717,000
(2018: profit of HK$2,007,000), in line with the change in

operating margin.
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Liquidity and financial resources

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group financed its
operations with internal generated cash flows. The Group adopts
a prudent financial policy such that it can meet the financial
obligations when they fall due and maintain a sufficient
operating fund for the development of the Group’s business. At
the end of the year, the Group’s aggregate fixed deposits and
cash balances amounted to approximately HK$31 million (2018:
HK$62 million). Cash and bank deposits were held mainly in
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The Group has foreign
operations and certain of its net assets are exposed to the risk of
foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations. The management
regularly monitors the foreign currency exchange risk of the

Group and may consider hedging activities when necessary.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group maintained secured bank loan
of HK$6 million (2018: HK$7 million) at operating subsidiary
level financing its working capital. As at 31 March 2019, the
Group maintained aggregate composite banking facilities other
than secured bank loans of approximately HK$46 million (2018:
HK$53 million) with various banks, of which approximately
HK$5 million (2018: HK$5 million) were utilised.

The Group continues to enjoy healthy financial position. As at
31 March 2019, the current ratio (current assets divided by
current liabilities) was approximately 2.5 times (2018: 3.0 times)
and the gearing ratio (aggregate of bank borrowings and finance
lease payables divided by shareholders’ equity) was 0.9% (2018:
1.1%).

Charge on assets

As at 31 March 2019, leasehold land and buildings with a
carrying value of approximately HK$30 million (31 March 2018:
HK$26 million) were pledged to secure bank loan granted to the

Group.
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EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2019, the Group employed 415 (2018: 468)
employees mainly in Hong Kong and mainland China. Salaries
of employees are maintained at competitive levels while bonuses
are granted on a discretionary basis. Other employee benefits
include mandatory provident fund, statutory and medical

insurance cover and training programmes.

COMMITMENT TO STAKEHOLDERS’ INTERESTS, SOCIETY’S
WELL-BEING AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

The Group is committed to ensuring the rights and interests of its
stakeholders (including its shareholders, employees and
customers) and the well-being of society at large while
complying with all the laws and regulations of the places where
it has operations, including Hong Kong, mainland China,

Taiwan, Macau and Singapore.

In addition to its business objective of maximizing returns to
shareholders, the Group also tries its best to fulfil its corporate
social responsibility. For instance, the Group ensures protection
of both environment and consumers against hazardous
substances throughout the process of conducting its business,
from raw material procurement, production to retail. The Group
also has taken measures to ensure that its factory in Shajing,
Shenzhen, complies with the local environmental regulations on
industrial emissions and effluents. The factory is only
responsible for sewing and is not engaged in any dyeing of

fabrics.

The Group believes in consumers’ entitlement to quality and
safe products. To attain this goal, the Group maintains
well-established relationships with trustworthy raw material
suppliers and processing factories, and delivers a sample of each
model of its products to Shenzhen Academy of Metrology and
Quality Inspection for inspection. Besides, the Group also
requires all business partners, raw material suppliers and
production vendors to fulfill all relevant legal and regulatory

requirements on product safety.
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The Group now has over 30 suppliers and has business
relationship of more than a decade on average with each of
them. Such well-established business relationships with the
suppliers are attributable to the Group’s success in building their

trust in it with integrity and by honouring the contracts.

The Group has established a customer loyalty program in order
to enhance customer satisfaction as well as to encourage
repeated purchase. Under the membership program, the VIP
customers can enjoy special discounts and regular activities. It
also manages and maintains good customer relations through
customer service hotlines, after-sales supports as well as bespoke

service and communication with members via mails and emails.

Another group of stakeholders who are also key to the Group’s
success are its employees. The Group offers its staff reasonable
remuneration and benefits and protect their rights according to
the labour laws of the places where it has operations. For
instance, it complies with the relevant laws and regulations on
the employees’ provident fund pension scheme, employment
insurance and safety at work. It also provides training for them
that benefit the development of both their careers and the

Group's business.

The Group aims to accumulate resources for business and use
them effectively to ensure sustainable development. For
instance, it has been enhancing the brand equity of its house
brands and that of the European brands for which it is a
distributor by actively exploring new markets. It has also
allocated resources for the design, research and development of
products and the training of staff. The move was aimed at
manufacturing products of high quality and refreshing designs
with new or improved materials. It also serves to raise the
efficiency of the retail operations. The Group also tries its best to
protect its intellectual property rights and patents and respects

other parties’ intellectual property rights.

All these initiatives and measures can contribute to the

sustainability of the Group’s business.
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Executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Yum Kit, aged 60, is the Chairman of the Company.
Mr. Chan is one of the co-founders of the Group and has overall
responsibility for the Group’s overall strategic planning,
formulation of corporate policies and marketing. He has over 42
years of experience in business administration in various
industries including garment manufacturing and trading.
Mr. Chan was awarded the Young Industrialist Awards of
Hongkong by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries in
November 2001 and was awarded with the DHL/SCMP Hong
Kong Business Award in the Owner-Operator Award category in
December 2001. He was awarded 2006 World Outstanding
Chinese Award by the World Chinese Business Investment
Foundation. Mr. Chan holds an honorary doctorate degree in
management from Armstrong University in the United States. He
was also awarded 2004 Associateship by The Professional
Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries in January 2004. He
is a senior fellow of Social Enterprise Research Academy and a
fellow member of Asian Knowledge Management Association.
He is currently a member of CreateSmart Initiative Vetting
Committee and of the Design-Business Collaboration Scheme
Assessment Panel under Create Hong Kong, and of the higher
education advisory committee of the faculty of design and
environment of Technological and Higher Education Institute of
Hong Kong. Mr. Chan is a member of Hong Kong Young
Industrialists Council and serves on the expert group on fashion
industry under the working group on manufacturing industries,
innovative technology, and cultural and creative industries of
the Economic Development Commission. He is the
vice-chairman of HK Guangxi Chamber of Commerce. He is the
husband of Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley and is the father of
Mr. Chan Sze Chun and Mr. Chan Pak Hei.
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Ms. TSUI How Kiu, Shirley, aged 60, is an executive director.
She is one of the co-founders of the Group and is the Group's
vice-chairman. She is responsible for the Group’s
merchandising management and retail operations management.
She has over 42 years of experience in business administration
in various industries including garment manufacturing and
trading. She was awarded Golden Bauhinia Women
Entrepreneur Excellence Award in November 2016. She is a
member of Zonta Club of New Territories, an honorary president
and council member of Hong Kong Federation of Women, a
co-chairman of HK Tianjin Women'’s Federation, a member of
HKFW Women Entrepreneurs Committee and of Hong Kong
Women Professionals & Entrepreneurs Association, a delegate of
All-China Women's Federation, Zhuhai, and a honorary
president of All-China Women’s Federation Hong Kong
Delegates Association Limited and of the island regional
association of the Hong Kong Girl Guides Association. Ms. Tsui
is the wife of Mr. Chan, Chairman of the Company, and is the
mother of Mr. Chan Sze Chun and Mr. Chan Pak Hei.

Mr. CHAN Sze Chun, aged 41, is an executive director. He
joined the Group in December 2000. He is responsible for
overseeing the Group’s overseas market operations. Mr. Chan
Sze Chun holds a bachelor’s degree in commerce from Monash
University of Australia. He is the son of Mr. Chan, Chairman of
the Company, and Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley, and is the brother
of Mr. Chan Pak Hei.
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Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. YU Yuk Ying, Vivian, aged 59,

non-executive director appointed in January 2002. Ms. Yu is a

is an independent
solicitor and a partner with Yung, Yu, Yuen & Co., a firm of
solicitors, and has been practising in Hong Kong for over 31
years with a focus in the conveyancing and commercial
practice. She obtained a bachelor’s degree in science from
University of Wisconsin-Madison as her first degree and then
passed the Solicitors’ Final Examination and qualified as a
solicitor. Ms. Yu has over 30 years’ experience in property
investment and management. She was appointed as
China-appointed Attesting Officer in 2003 and was also
appointed as notary public in December 2009.

Mr. CHU Chun Kit, Sidney, aged 58,
non-executive director appointed in October 2003. Mr. Chu is
currently the CEO of Archiledture Limited. He has 28 years’

is an independent

experience in international marketing and senior management
role in both the semiconductor and solid-state lighting
industries. Mr. Chu graduated from the University of Essex with
a bachelor’s degree in science (electronic engineering) and
received a master’s degree in science from the University of

Westminster, London.

Ms. WONG Shuk Ying, Helen, aged 65, is an independent
non-executive director appointed in September 2004. Ms. Wong
is currently the director of Kimeray Investment Limited. She has
over 30 years’ experience in management consulting and
systems implementation in both the public and private sectors.
Ms. Wong is a member of the Chartered Professional
Accountants of Canada and holds a bachelor’s degree in
commerce from Queen’s University in Canada. She is the
vice-chairman of the board of directors, a member of the fund
raising committee and finance committee, and the chairman of
the information technology committee of Heep Hong Society,
and is a director, the chairman of the information technology
development committee and a member of the services

committee of Hong Kong YWCA.
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Senior Management

Mr. CHAN Pak Hei, aged 31, is the deputy chief executive
officer of the Group. He joined the Group in May 2009. He is
responsible for overseeing the Group’s overall operations and
design and development functions. In addition, he is also
responsible for the Group’s brand building, marketing and
interior design affairs. Mr. Chan Pak Hei holds a bachelor of arts
degree in fashion management (fashion retail) from University of
the Arts London of the United Kingdom. He is a member of
Hong Kong CPPCC Youth Association and a co-vice-chairperson
of the academy ball organising committee of the Society of the
Academy for Performing Arts. He is the son of Mr. Chan,
Chairman of the Company, and Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley, and
is the brother of Mr. Chan Sze Chun.

Ms. PANG Lin, aged 49, is the chief operating officer of the
Group and the company secretary of the Company. Prior to
joining the Group in June 2001, Ms. Pang served as a finance
manager and company secretary of a company listed on the
main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. She
has over 28 years of experience in the audit, accounting and
finance, administration and corporate secretarial fields. She
holds a bachelor of arts degree in accountancy and a master’s
degree in business administration (fashion business) from Hong
Kong Polytechnic University, a master’s degree in corporate
governance from the Open University of Hong Kong and a
bachelor’s degree in Chinese law from Peking University. She is
a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
of the United Kingdom, the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries (“HKICS”) and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries &
Administrators of the United Kingdom, a member of the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants of the United
Kingdom and a holder of the practitioner’s endorsement of
HKICS.
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Moiselle International Holdings Limited (the “company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “group”) is committed to meeting statutory and
regulatory requirements and adherence to the principles of
corporate governance emphasizing transparency, independence,

accountability, responsibility and fairness.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

Save for the deviation of the Code Provisions A.2.1T and A.6.7 as
below, the company has complied with the code provisions
listed in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”) throughout the year ended 31 March 2019.

Code Provisions A.2.1

Under Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual. Currently,
Mr. Chan Yum Kit is the chairman of the board of directors (the
“Board”) and also assumes the role of the chief executive officer.
The Board considers that the current management structure
ensures consistent leadership and optimal efficiency for the
operation of the company. The company will however keep this

matter under review.

Code Provisions A.6.7

Code Provisions A.6.7 of the CG Code provides that the
independent non-executive directors should attend general
meetings of the company. Due to prior engagements external to
the company, Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen was unable to attend
the annual general meeting of the company held on 5 September
2018.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the company’s
code of conduct for dealings in securities of the company by the
directors. Based on specific enquiry of the company’s directors,
the directors have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2019.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises six directors, three of which are executive
directors, namely Mr. Chan Yum Kit (Chairman), Ms. Tsui How
Kiu, Shirley, and Mr. Chan Sze Chun, and three are independent
non-executive directors, namely Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian,
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney and Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, five board meetings
were held. One of the meetings was held in accordance with
paragraph A.2.7 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules which states
that the Chairman should hold meeting with the non-executive
directors without the executive directors of the company

present. The attendance of each director is set out as follows:

H AT 8%
Director Attendance record
Mr. Chan Yum Kit 5/5
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley 4/4
Mr. Chan Sze Chun 3/4
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 5/5
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 5/5
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 5/5

During the year ended 31 March 2019, one general meeting, the
annual general meeting, was held. The attendance of each

director is set out as follows:

Hi FE R0 8%
Director Attendance record
Mr. Chan Yum Kit 1/1
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley 1/1
Mr. Chan Sze Chun 1/1
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 1/1
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 1/1
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 0/1

The board of directors is responsible for the formulation of
business strategies for the group and the operational decision

making is delegated to the management team.
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Mr. Chan Yum Kit

®InEL L
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The relationship among members of the Board is separately

disclosed in the directors and senior management profiles.

DIRECTORS” TRAINING

director are set out as follows:

FriEssE iR B BAIlRHEE

Training received and date Training provider

—E2-NE-R=+Z=H ERESEY

Global Investment Outlook The Hong Kong Institute
2019 and Strategic Positioning of Directors

under Current Global
Macro Trend
22 January 2019

—2-N&-RA=-+=H EREEEE
Global Investment Outlook The Hong Kong Institute
2019 and Strategic Positioning of Directors

under Current Global
Macro Trend
22 January 2019

FEARERBHIIEEENTE FHRLRAEZR
—Z-h%-—-H

HEIAREABREIMELENEE  The Open University of
January 2019 Hong Kong

The directors have provided records of the training they received

to the company. The details of training records provided of each

Fir 5 B ]

Time spent

3/ B

3 hours

3B

3 hours

2/NBF

2 hours
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FriEssE iRk B

Training received and date

—Z-N\&+-A+=H

HK IPO :
New Listing Requirements,
Offering Structures and
Application Procedures

13 December 2018

—E-N\FEXHEMEH
The KPMG INED Forum
4 June 2018

—E-N\FN\R=TZ=H
Non-Executive Director
Programme :
Staying ahead of the
new business model
— Unicorns
23 August 2018

—F-N\Ft-HA=t=H
The Greater China INED
Forum 2018 — Explore
the Critical Elements of
New Economy Enterprises
22 November 2018

BAlRHE

Training provider

ERERSRREZS
Hong Kong Securities and

Investment Institute

S ETE S
KPMG

BORKESMSBEN

PricewaterhouseCoopers

ERBIFUTESHS
The Hong Kong Independent
Non-Executive Director

Association

Fir 5 B

Time spent

3/ B

3 hours

2/ B

2 hours

1.5/N B
1.5hours

5/ B

5 hours
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Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian had provided training record on her
fulfillment of the mandatory continuing professional
development requirements of The Law Society of Hong Kong
during the year ended 31 March 2019.

TERM OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The independent non-executive directors were appointed for a
term of two years and are subject to retirement by rotation in

accordance with the articles of association of the company.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors a confirmation of independence for the
year ended 31 March 2019 pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and considers all the independent non-executive directors

to be independent.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The company has a nomination committee which was
established in compliance with the CG Code. The members of
the nomination committee comprise two independent
non-executive directors of the company, Ms. Yu Yuk Ying,
Vivian (Chairperson) and Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen, and one

executive director, Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley.

The main role and function of the nomination committee consist
of formulation and implementation of the nomination policy,
review of the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of perspectives) of
the Board, and making recommendations to the Board on
relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of directors and succession planning for directors in particular

the chairman and the chief executive.
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BOARD DIVERSITY
The company has adopted a board diversity policy which

consists of the following main aspects:

a. Board composition to be reviewed in terms of the size of
the Board, the number of non-executive directors and

executive directors in relation to the overall Board,

b. Board effectiveness which requires members to have diverse
skills, knowledge and experiences that combine to provide

different perspectives and effective board dynamics, and

c. Nominations and appointments to be carried out in view of
maintaining an appropriate mix of required skills,

experience, expertise and diversity on the Board.

The nomination committee is responsible to review the policy
on board diversity and any measurable objectives for its
implementation and to review the progress on achieving the

objectives.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The company has a remuneration committee which was
established in compliance with the CG Code. The members of
the remuneration committee comprise two independent
non-executive directors of the company, Ms. Yu Yuk Ying,
Vivian (Chairperson) and Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney, and one

executive director, Mr. Chan Sze Chun.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, two remuneration
committee meetings were held. The attendance of each

committee member is set out as follows:

i FEAC 8%
Director Attendance record
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 2/2
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 2/2
Mr. Chan Sze Chun 2/2
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The main role and function of the remuneration committee
consist of determining the remuneration packages and the terms
of employment of the directors and senior management. During
the year, the remuneration committee has approved the terms of
executive directors’ service agreements and of non-executive

director’s appointment.

The emoluments of the executive directors are determined with
reference to the duties, responsibilities and experience of the
directors and prevailing market conditions. Besides the basic
salaries and benefits-in-kind as stipulated in the service
agreements, prior approval of the remuneration committee is
also required for performance related benefits of the executive

directors.

The emoluments of the non-executive directors are determined
based on the estimated time spent by them on the company’s

matters.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments of the members of the senior management by

band for the year ended 31 March 2019 are set out below:

AH
HK$ Number of person
1,000,001 - 1,500,000 1
2,000,001 - 2,500,000 1

Further particulars regarding directors’ remuneration and
individuals with highest emoluments as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes

10 and 11 to the financial statements respectively.
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AUDITORS” REMUNERATION
During the year, the remuneration paid or payable to the group’s

independent auditor is analysed as follows:

BT
HK$
Bt iR Audit services 1,300,000
EET R Non-audit services 70,000
1,370,000

ERERS® AUDIT COMMITTEE

AAREBLEMRAUEI2IRBRLEREES > 5
EERRERAEE 2 UBRRBEARRARERE
RABEZHE BREEEHARA=UBFE
HITESAR  PRRAREELL (EF) - KEH
FEREARZL WO ESSER -

E=s

RE&E &L
REERE
BEHRZL

FR > BRZESCHEEEENAEEMRRNZ
S RAIRES AEEZHBHRFEPFHHRR
HEEURBMEEREN  HAKEUBEREBE
BEREFEBCSENEEEREEBRBIERE -

The company has an audit committee which was established in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the purposes
of reviewing and providing supervision over the group’s
financial reporting process and risk management and internal
control systems. The audit committee comprises three
independent non-executive directors of the company, Ms. Yu
Yuk Ying, Vivian (Chairperson), Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney and
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen, and reports to the Board.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, three audit committee
meetings were held. The attendance of each committee member

is set out as follows:

o FE 50 8%
Director Attendance record
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 3/3
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 3/3
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 3/3

During the year, the audit committee has reviewed with the
management the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the group, the interim and annual financial statements of the
group, met and discussed with the independent auditors, and
raised queries and obtained explanations from the management
on issues related to financial and operational control procedures

of the group.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges their responsibilities on the
maintenance of risk management and internal control systems
which are essential for effective and efficient operations of the
group and are fundamental in the thorough and regular
evaluation of the nature and extent of the risks to which the
group is exposed. These systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. Internal control is defined
as a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding

the achievement of objectives in relation to the following:

e Effectiveness and efficiency of operations;

Reliability of financial reporting; and

e Compliance with applicable laws and regulations

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Board, with the
assistance of the management, had conducted an annual review
on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the group, focusing on three major business cycles of
the group, under COSO (Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission) framework. The Board had been
satisfied with the effectiveness and adequacy of these systems on
monitoring and evaluating the risks. Based on the results, the
directors were dedicated to implement various initiatives to
further enhance the existing risk management and internal
control systems alongside with the ongoing business

development of the group.

During the year, the group has maintained an internal audit
function with internal resources and engaged external
consultants to assist the management in order to identify,

evaluate and manage significant risks of the group.

The group complies with the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information published by the Securities and Futures Commission
in view of fulfilling its obligations to disclose inside information

under Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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DIRECTORS” RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PREPARING ACCOUNTS
The company’s directors acknowledge that they are responsible
for the preparation of financial statements which give a true and

fair view.

STATEMENT BY THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
The statement of the independent auditor of the group regarding
their responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the

independent auditor’s report on pages 43 to 58.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The board adopts a dividend policy which in considering
declaration of dividends, the company shall maintain adequate
cash reserves in order to meet its working capital requirements
and future growth, and shall preserve its shareholders’ value by
allowing shareholders to participate in the company’s profits as

well.

The board shall declare and distribute dividends to the
shareholders of the company in compliance with the articles of
association of the company under all applicable regulatory

framework.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

According to article 58 of the company’s articles of association,
any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the
company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist himself may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist as a result of the failure of the Board shall be

reimbursed to the requisitionist by the company.
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If a member of the public or a shareholder wishes to put forward
enquiries to the Board and/or put forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings, he/she must deposit a written notice (the
“Notice”) to the principal place of business of the company in
Hong Kong at Units 1-5, 11th Floor, Kodak House 2, 39 Healthy
Street East, North Point, Hong Kong, or the branch share
registrar of the company, Hong Kong Registrars Limited, at 17M
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong

Kong for the attention of the company secretary of the company.

In order for a proposal to be considered in general meetings, the
period for lodgement of the Notice will commence no earlier
than the day after the despatch of the notice by the company of
the general meeting to be convened and end no later than seven
days prior to the date of such general meeting. If the Notice is
received less than 15 days prior to the general meeting, the
company will need to consider the adjournment of the general
meeting in order to give shareholders 14 days’ notice of the

proposal.

The Notice will be verified with the company’s branch share
registrar and upon their confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the company secretary of the company will ask the
relevant committee of the company and the Board to consider to
include the resolution in the agenda for the general meeting to

be convened.
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Directors’ Report

The directors of Moiselle International Holdings Limited (“the
company”) presented its annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the company and its

subsidiaries (the “group”) for the year ended 31 March 2019.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The company is a company incorporated and domiciled in the
Cayman Islands and has its registered office and principal place
of business at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and Units 1-5, 11/F,
Kodak House 2, 39 Healthy Street East, North Point, Hong Kong

respectively.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the group are the design, manufacture and
retail of fashion apparel and accessories. The principal activities
and other particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in note 32 to

the consolidated financial statements.

The analysis of geographical location of the operations of the
group during the financial year is set out in note 5 to the

consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the businesses of the group during the year, a
discussion on the group’s future business development and an
analysis of the group’s performance during the year using
financial key performance indicators are provided in the
Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to 10 and the Management

Discussion and Analysis on pages 11 to 17 of this annual report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

For principal risks and uncertainties, the directors are aware that
the group is exposed to risks and uncertainties, including those
specific to the group and those having generic impacts. The
management closely monitors the business environment in
which the group operates in order to have opportunities and
threats the group faces identified, reported, monitored and
managed on a continuous basis. Related discussion on certain
risks and uncertainties is provided in the Chairman’s Statement
on pages 4 to 10 and the Management Discussion and Analysis
on pages 11 to 17 of this annual report and notes 28 and 29 to

the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS
During the year ended 31 March 2019, the percentage of the
five largest customers combined were less than 30% of the

group'’s total revenue.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS
The information in respect of the group’s purchases attributable

to the major suppliers respectively during the financial year is as

follows:
FEERBESHEIL
Percentage of the group’s
purchases total
The largest supplier 30%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate 43%

At no time during the year have the directors, their associates or
any shareholder of the company (which to the best knowledge of
the directors owns more than 5% of the company’s share

capital) had any interest in these major customers and suppliers.
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
group for each of the last five financial years is set out on pages
167 and 168.

DIVIDEND

The board did not declare the payment of an interim dividend
for the six months ended 30 September 2018. For the six months
ended 30 September 2017, an interim dividend of Hong Kong
one cent per share was declared and paid. The directors do not
declare the payment of a final dividend in respect of the year
ended 31 March 2019. For the year ended 31 March 2018, a
final dividend of Hong Kong four cents per share was declared

and paid.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
Charitable donations made by the group during the year
amounted to HK$197,000 (2018: HK$286,000).

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the company’s share capital are set out in note 24 to
the consolidated financial statements. There were no movements

during the year.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000.
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RETIREMENT SCHEME (continued)

As stipulated by the regulations of the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”), the group participates in defined contribution
retirement plans organised by the relevant authorities for its PRC
employees. The group is required to make contributions to the
retirement plans which are calculated based on certain
prescribed rates on the salaries, bonuses and certain allowances
of its PRC employees. The group has no other material
obligation for the payment of pension benefits associated with

such plans beyond the annual contributions described above.

Employees of the subsidiary carrying on business in Taiwan
chose to participate in a defined contribution scheme governed
by the Labour Pension Act of Taiwan. This subsidiary contributes
at 6% of the total salaries of participating employees who have
chosen to participate in the defined contribution scheme,
deposited into individual pension accounts at the Bureau of

Labour Insurance of Taiwan.

Employees of the subsidiary in Singapore participate in the
Central Provident Fund scheme (the “CPF”) organised by the
government of Singapore. This subsidiary and its employees are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the
CPF. The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the CPF. The
subsidiary has no further obligations for the actual pension

payments or post-retirement benefits beyond its contributions.

Contributions to the defined contribution scheme are charged to

profit or loss when incurred.
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= DIRECTORS

RUBFEHEREERARETEZE  REZE The directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
EWMT report were:

BITES Executive directors

BRERAR ST Mr. Chan Yum Kit

®RImBE L Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley

BREB& L Mr. Chan Sze Chun

BYFHTES Independent non-executive directors

REELZL Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian

REEETE Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney

EHELL Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen
REBEREERENRZTHEREAQAAZHBER Mr. Chan Sze Chun and Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen will retire
WMAE7HENERERRBFASLER  REFSE at the forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance with
ERIWFEBREE - article 87 of the company’s articles of association and, being

eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

ESHRBAXN DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
BYFHTESZ2EDRRIEME - LARBEARAH The independent non-executive directors were appointed for a
ZEBERMBRMESE - term of two years and are subject to retirement by rotation in

accordance with the articles of association of the company.

BREERRAFAS LEREFT - ESMETL No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
RA B REARAM B D B A A — F AL LT EA general meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
XNBES CEEBERN) 2REBRBEWQ - determinable by the company or any of its subsidiaries within

one year without payment of compensation, other than normal

statutory obligations.
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2019, the interests and short positions of the
directors and the chief executive of the company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the
register kept by the company under section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)

were as follows:

PRGBS EEBNED T
EEpE Beneficial interest Approximate EEME
Name of director in shares  percentage of interests Nature of interest
PRI & 193,616,000 67.24% NG
Mr. Chan Yum Kit Corporate/Family
2,100,000 0.73% Ei 3
Family
2,100,000 0.73% LEPN
Personal
(BtaE(1)%2))
(Notes (1) and (2))
#®InEz+ 193,616,000 67.24% UNGCIPE-§i 3
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley Corporate/Family
2,100,000 0.73% Ei3
Family
2,100,000 0.73% @A
Personal
(Biaz1)K2))
(Notes (1) and (2))
REZEE 900,000 0.31% BA
Mr. Chan Sze Chun Personal
ERRLT 30,000 0.01% BA
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen Personal
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

Notes:

(1) 190,000,000 of these shares are held by Super Result Consultants
Limited (“Super Result”). The share capital of Super Result is
beneficially owned by Mr. Chan Yum Kit (“Mr. Chan”) and
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley (“Ms. Tsui”) as to 46.7% and 46.7%
respectively. Each of Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui will therefore be
deemed interested in the 190,000,000 shares held by Super Result
as corporate interest.

3,616,000 of these shares are held by New First Investments
Limited (“New First”). The share capital of New First is beneficially
owned by Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui as to 50% and 50% respectively.
Each of Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui will therefore be deemed interested
in the 3,616,000 shares held by New First as corporate interest.

(2)  Since Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui are married to each other, Mr. Chan
will be deemed interested in the shares which Ms. Tsui is deemed
interested in as family interest, and vice versa.

In addition to the above, one director has non-beneficial
personal equity interests in certain subsidiaries held for the
benefit of the group. Certain director also has beneficial interest
in non-voting deferred shares practically carrying no rights to
dividends or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any
general meeting or to participate in any distribution or winding

up in a subsidiary.

Apart from the foregoing, as at 31 March 2019, none of the
directors or the chief executive of the company or their
respective associates had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the company or any
of its associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO, as recorded in the register kept by the company under
section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the company

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

39



40

Moiselle International Holdings Limited % ¥ B KX 5 M & B 2 ]

Annual Report 2019 4 45 #t

R

Directors’ Report

EERFETRABRE S 2Em (/)

BREMEN  BE-_Z-—NEFE=Z=A=+—HLEFE
HE > AAF - REEFMZERAF - B FHE
B A RMEEAEN—FSREMEZH  BE
RARESHFETHAERHE BB ARMIS
B2 T ZAEBARD RS EAEMEARZRD R
EHFEmER -

AARRAZEEE R

RZZB-NF=ZA=1t—H BRAQAREES
R ERPIEIBMR 2R EFE 2B MR
BRARAEERERTHRAEZI  UTRRRA
RARGRBERDPEEEARBESZRBERD
EXVRHAEANT 2 BEHAR ¢

BRRARE

Name of shareholder

DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year ended 31
March 2019 was the company, or any of its holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the directors or the chief executive of the company or
any of their spouses or children under eighteen years of age to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or

debentures of the company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 March 2019, the interests or short positions of the
following shareholder, other than the directors and the chief
executive of the company, in the shares or underlying shares of
the company which have been disclosed to the company
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO have been recorded in the
register kept by the company under section 336 of the SFO:

EZABEERERT

BHzBNE DL

HRROEH Approximate percentage
Aggregate long of aggregate interests to

position in shares total issued shares

Super Result

Btat : Super Result ZBRATIHBREERBRZ LT HIE
BEFA46.7%%46.7% °

BREMRER EX[ESREIBTHRAERES 2E
wm | —EEARRESEREETHRAE 2
BERADARBEIZRPERAFEIBH2RER
BExBiMresE R=E-NF=A=1+—-8"
YEAMATREDTDROIEERD P HEEES

RHA o

190,000,000 65.99% (#1&E) (Note)

Note: The share capital of Super Result is beneficially owned by
Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui as to 46.7% and 46.7% respectively.

Apart from the foregoing, and other than the directors and the
chief executive of the company whose interests are set out in the
section “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests in securities”
above, no person was recorded in the register kept by the
company under section 336 of the SFO as having an interest or a
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the company
as at 31 March 2019.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which
the company, or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party, in which a director of the
company had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the year

or at any time during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain material related party transactions as set out in note
30(a) to the consolidated financial statements fall under the
definition of continuing connected transactions in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The transactions are exempt from the
reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.33(3)

of the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the company’s
articles of association or the law in the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the company to offer new shares on a pro rata

basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the company’s
listed securities by the company or any of its subsidiaries during

the year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the company has maintained the
prescribed public float required under the Listing Rules, based
on the information that is publicly available to the company and

within the knowledge of the directors of the company.
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INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the
directors of the company is currently in force and was in force

throughout the year.

AUDITORS

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution of the
re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the
company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

By order of the board

Chan Yum Kit

Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 June 2019
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Deloitte.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Moiselle International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 59 to 164, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2019, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 March 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Provision for onerous operating lease contracts and valuation of leasehold improvements

We identified the provision for onerous operating lease
contracts and valuation of leasehold improvements in
retail stores as a key audit matter due to inherent
uncertainty pertaining to the assumptions required in
determining the future discounted cash flow forecasts of
each of the cash-generating unit (“CGU”) being the
individual retail stores and involvement of significant
degree of management judgement and estimation in

determining the amount of provision.

Management judgement is required to identify those
CGUs requiring provision and/or impairment, including
the determination of unavoidable costs and economic
benefits from operating those CGUs during the remaining

non-cancellable lease period.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group recognised provision for
onerous contracts of HK$4,461,000 based on the
estimated unavoidable costs of meeting all leases and
other obligations under the retail stores, net of economic

benefits expected to be received from the stores.

Our procedures in relation to provision for onerous
operating lease contracts and valuation of leasehold

improvements included:

e Evaluating management’s identification of CGUs, the
allocation of assets to each CGU identified and the
impairment assessment methodology adopted by
management with reference to the requirements of

the prevailing accounting standards;

e Considering whether the discounted cash flow
forecast for each CGU supported the carrying value
of the relevant assets or exceeded the value of the
future financial obligations under the
non-cancellable operating leases and whether
management’s impairment assessments indicated that
a reversal of previously recognised impairment
provision or provision for onerous operating lease

contracts was required;

e Performing a retrospective review of the impairment
assessments carried out by management in the
previous year by comparing the forecasts of revenue
and operating profit with the current year’s
performance to assess the reliability of management’s

forecasting process;
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Provision for onerous operating lease contracts and valuation of leasehold improvements (continued)

Impairment on leasehold improvements of HK$1,478,000
was recognised during the year ended 31 March 2019. As
at 31 March 2019, the carrying amount of the leasehold

improvements in retail stores was HK$8,317,000.

Comparing the most significant inputs used in the
preparation of the discounted cash flow forecasts,
including future revenue and related future expenses,
with the historical performance of these retail stores
and the budgets and forecasts approved by directors
of the Company, taking into account recent
developments in the retail sector and the future

operating plans for the Group;

Evaluating the reasonableness of the discount rates

applied in the cash flow forecasts; and

Performing sensitivity analyses of key assumptions
and considering the resulting impact on the provision
for onerous operating lease contracts and impairment
charge and whether there were any indicators of

management bias.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Valuation of inventories

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key audit
matter because of the inherent estimation uncertainty
within the assumptions made by management when

determining the provision of inventories.

Management has determined the allowance for obsolete
and slow-moving inventory items at the end of reporting
period with reference to the aged inventories analysis,
historical consumption trends and by comparing the
carrying amount of inventories with their estimated net
realisable values, primarily based on the latest selling

prices.

As at 31 March 2019, the carrying amount of inventories
was HK$59,495,000.

Our procedures in relation to valuation of inventories

included:

e Obtaining an understanding of the basis used to
determine the inventory provision policy and the
information used by management to determine the

inventory provisions;

e Testing, on a sample basis, whether items in the
inventory ageing report were classified within the
appropriate ageing brackets by comparing the
individual items selected with underlying records
which indicated the season of production of the

item;

e Testing the mathematical accuracy of inventory

provisions made by management;
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Valuation of inventories (continued)

e Evaluating the reasonableness of management’s
inventory provision policy by comparing
management’s forecasts of the net amounts of unsold
inventories at the end of each season with the

historical sales trends for the current and prior years;

e Assessing the reasonableness of management’s
estimates of the net realisable values of the
inventories by comparing the amounts, on a sample
basis, to actual sales transactions subsequent to the

reporting date; and

e Considering whether management’s impairment
assessments indicated that a reversal of previously
recognised inventory provision was required, and
where there is reversal of provision, testing, on a

sample basis, the sales of relevant inventories for the

reasonableness of the reversal.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Valuation of investment properties and land and buildings held for own use

We identified the valuation of investment properties and
land and buildings held for own use as a key audit matter
because the valuations of these properties requires the
exercise of significant judgement and estimation which

increases the risk of error or potential management bias.

The fair values of the investment properties and land and
buildings held for own use were assessed by the directors
based on independent valuations prepared by an
independent professional firm of surveyors. The key
estimates and assumptions adopted by the external
property valuer included rental yields and the selection of

comparable market transactions.

The Group’s investment properties and land and buildings
held for own use were valued at HK$282,725,000 and
HK$390,712,000 as at 31 March 2019, respectively.

Our procedures in relation to valuation of investment
properties and land and buildings held for own use

included:

e Obtaining and inspecting the valuation reports
prepared by the external property valuer engaged by
the Group and on which the directors’ assessment of
the fair values of investment properties and land and

buildings held for own use was based;

e Assessing the external property valuer’s
qualifications, experience and expertise in the
properties being valued and considering their

objectivity and independence;

e Discussing with the external property valuer to
understand the valuation methodology applied and
the key estimates and assumptions adopted in their

valuations and assess the reasonableness;

e Comparing the rental yields and comparable market
transactions adopted by the external property valuer

with available market data, on a sample basis; and

e Undertaking an analysis of each property valuation,
comparing the movements in capital values over the
year by obtaining evidence of comparable sales in
the neighbourhood of each property and assessing
whether the external evidence was consistent with

the values provided by the external property valuer.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing

the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's

internal control.
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e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group

to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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BREMEEN  RMEREREER T EMNETE We communicate with those charged with governance
CEFEZEE EXEFT RS EERMES regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
FR R 1 Y P R 42 R AV AT B R BR B o the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the

independent auditor’s report is Faith Corazon Del Rosario.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

25 June 2019



Moiselle International Holdings Limited % i I B 4 M & | 2 )
Annual Report 2019 4 4E #

A SR R M A 2 v W A o

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

BE-_Z—NE=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2019

ZE-NF —E-N\F
2019 2018
M ZE THERT FET
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
W Revenue 5 251,021 290,576
SHE R A& Cost of sales (45,793) (68,787)
EA Gross profit 205,228 221,789
Hamlg A Other income 6 6,118 6,773
HiwEREE Other gains and losses 7 1,703 (1,017)
DERBEERX Distribution and selling expenses (189,665) (179,386)
THREMEERX Administrative and other operating expenses (68,289) (69,781)
BEEE Loss from operations (44,905) (21,622)
BREMEDAREBERE ZWE Gain on changes in fair value of investment
properties 14 27,790 27,594
HEMBE LRzl E Gain on disposal of subsidiary 32 356 -
EBheeE Az EE Share of results of a joint venture 15 131 577
=GN Finance costs (510) (189)
BB AT (FE) B F (Loss) profit before taxation (17,138) 6,360
FrEfHEx Income tax expense 8 (2,703) (5,099)
Fr(ER)EF (Loss) profit for the year 9 (19,841) 1,261
Hthzmls (%) Other comprehensive income (expense)
BTEEH T HE Item that will not be reclassified to profit or
BEmZHEA loss:
BEBRIHRESEY 2  Gain on revaluation of land and buildings
Bl held for own use 56,285 61,191
RIEBHREEFT D EE Item that may be reclassified subsequently to
BEnzEE profit or loss:
BREBHNEKRCERES  Exchange differences arising on translation
of foreign operations (10,814) 11,781
45,471 72,972
AEEE2EKGSHERE Total comprehensive income for the year 25,630 74,233
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

BE-_Z—NE=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2019

=E-NF —2-N\E
2019 2018
B = FHET THET
NOTE HK$’000 HK$’000
THALTEERFE (Loss) profit for the year attributable to:
(B]R) A :
FNUNESIE=Y = DN Owners of the Company (19,717) 2,007
RS Non-controlling interests (124) (746)
(19,841) 1,261
THATEEZE RS Total comprehensive income (expense)
(X)) #E: attributable to:
VNCIEST SN Owners of the Company 25,754 74,979
FIERER Non-controlling interests (124) (746)
25,630 74,233
BR(BER)EF (Loss) earnings per share

EAX(GEBT) Basic (HK dollars) 13 (0.07) 0.01
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WZZE—HE=HF=+—H At 31 March 2019

=E-NF —E-N\F
2019 2018
M = THET TERT
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
FRBEE Non-current assets
BEYE Investment properties 14 282,725 196,628
M BERSE Property, plant and equipment 14 402,444 449,190
RAB AT RS Interest in a joint venture 15 . -
BESE Deposits paid 16 27,775 13,565
EILEFTEREE Deferred tax assets 21 600 3,437
713,544 662,820
REEE Current assets
BE Inventories 17 59,495 49,204
Ly BE 2 T L B L 2K Trade and other receivables 18 35,557 44,096
WEERIE Tax recoverable _ 29
RITHEBRES Bank balances and cash 19 30,720 62,173
125,772 155,502
REEE Current liabilities
P BRI ELA RS 3 Trade and other payables 20 39,207 42,918
B8 Tax payable 103 89
e Borrowings 22 6,492 7,073
B84 YR E Provision for onerous contracts 23 4,461 1,898
50,263 51,978
RBEERE Net current assets 75,509 103,524
EERERRDAR Total assets less current liabilities 789,053 766,344
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WZZE—HE=HF=+—H At 31 March 2019

=i —2-N\F
2019 2018
M 3 THET TER
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
FRBERE Non-current liability
EEMERER Deferred tax liabilities 21 102,850 94,254
ﬁggﬁ Net assets 686,203 672,090
BEXRf#E Capital and reserves
[N Share capital 24 2,880 2,880
feif Reserves 684,071 669,834
RRBEE AELS Equity attributable to owners
MRERHE of the Company 686,951 672,714
FiZRER Non-controlling interests (748) (624)
%Hﬁigﬁ Total equity 686,203 672,090
FORIMEZEAMBREREN-E—NERA The consolidated financial statements on pages 59 to 164 were
T+ EARKREEEREYHTRY  WHTHES approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
REHEE: 25 June 2019 and are signed on its behalf by:
Chan Yum Kit Tsui How Kiu, Shirley
BRSRAR ®I9E
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

= 2
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HE-Z-N4=A=+—HBI4Z For the year ended 31 March 2019

KAAEAARG
Attributable to owners of the Company
EERROE  NRERER FERER

B i B EiRE Statutory Property REEA Non- LhRER
Share Share Other Exchange reserve revaluation Retained it controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve funds reserve profits Total interests equity
Thn Tén Tén Thn T Tén Tin Thn T Tn
HKS'000 HK§'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK§'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HK§000 HKS'000

(i) (R

[note i) (note (i)

HZZ-t§0A3-5 AT April 2017 2,880 05,327 4 18,307 9,336 339,460 170,942 606,373 v 606,495

Enigr(ER) Proft loss) for the year - - - - 2007 2007 (746) 1261

BERRTRRESNL Gain on revaluation of land and buildings held

Efilz for own use - - - 73,19 - 73219 - 73,19

Eft5ERRLER Income ax rlating to revaluation of land and

BENIHEH buildings held for own use - - (12,028) - (12,028) - (12,008)
BESMRRFEL, Exchange difference arising from transltion of
EEE foreign operation - - 1,781 - - - 11,781 - 11,781

NG (X 28 Total comprehensive income (expense) 11,781 - 61,191 2007 74979 (746) 74233

Ra () Dividends fnote 12 - - - - (8,638) (8,630 - (6,638

H-E-NFZf=1-8 At31 March 2018 2,880 05,327 4] 30,088 9,336 400,651 164311 072,714 (624) 672,09

EREE Loss for the year S S = = 19,717) (19,717) (124) (19,841)

BERALEREE. Gain on reeluation offand and buildings

EfflE held for own use - o = 6,788 = 06,788 = 66,788

EfEFARLER Income tax relating o revaluation of and and

BENZAER buildings held for own use = o = = (10,303) = (10,303) - (10,303)
BEENERAEL, Exchange difference arising from transltion of

EREE foreign operation - - - (10,814) - - - (10,814) - (10,814)
N (ER 28 Total comprehensive income (expense) B o (10,814) = 56,285 (19,717) 25,754 (124) 25,630
HERERERERA L Reveluation surplu transerre o retained

EffRg profits upon disposal - - - (194) 1924 - - -

Ba () Dividends note 12 B - B - (1151 (11,517 - (11,517

WoE-NE=R=1-B At31 March 2019 2,880 05,327 il 19274 9,336 455,012 135,001 686,951 (748) 686,203

B 5E - Notes:

(i) EHtHFEEER-IZEZ-_F-BAZ+HHBHERZAX (i) Other reserve represents the difference between the nominal value
SEEAEMBEZME QR 2 RAEESE R L E of the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired over the nominal
BREZAQACHITRACEHEZEZL - value of the shares of the Company issued in exchange thereof

pursuant to a group reorganisation which became effective on 25
January 2002.
i)y RENBBECLEBERAZHEARLNE ([H (i) According to the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) laws

Bl AR RATRZHEIME A A iﬁjﬁﬂﬂﬁ
ERGLE 2RRRBESRBIRBRER
Ee ARRUZREESEZDARFERBE
/ﬁn%”(kzq‘]@/fﬁu-l- 5) Z10%ERIREES
N BHEZESZHEREZHIMER Z250%%5
o WIBESTAEFRAEEENERAMTER
ﬁﬁ°$ﬁ¢%@ﬁ2§$%ﬂ%%?&%ﬁﬁ%
RAERTBIRBRENES R-ZZRF
+B =+t HEEME EE—::/\E A—
it EREBTBEALIESZ BHITEEOHE
IREREANESEHER-

applicable to wholly-owned foreign investment enterprises, the
PRC subsidiaries of the Company are required to set up two
statutory reserve funds, general reserve fund and staff general fund.
General reserve fund was set up by appropriating at least 10% of
their annual profit after taxation, as determined under PRC
regulations, until the balance of the fund reaches 50% of their
registered capital. This fund can be used to make good losses or to
convert into paid-in capital. Transfer from retained profits to staff
general fund was made at the discretion of the board of directors of
the PRC subsidiaries. Starting from 1 January 2006, the transfer is
no longer a statutory obligation upon the revision of the law on 27
October 2005 and no transfer to staff general fund has been made
since.
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HE-Z-N4=A=+—HBI4Z For the year ended 31 March 2019
=E-NF —2-N\E
2019 2018
THET THET
HK$’000 HK$'000
RETED Operating activities
BB AT (B518) & A (Loss) profit before taxation (17,138) 6,360
BT HIEL AR Adjustments for:
A& B AR Finance costs 510 189
FMEWA Interest income (361) (440)
REMEAREEH 2 Wi Gain on changes in fair value of
investment properties (27,790) (27,594)
M BMEREZEINE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 19,377 18,528
M BMEREZEZREESSE Impairment losses on property,
plant and equipment 1,478 3,240
BEENEE (BREE) B Provision (utilisation of provision) for onerous
contracts, net 2,563 (10,664)
W 2R ERBERE Reversal of impairment losses on
trade receivables = (5)
FE MR ERE Reversal of write-down of inventories (8,133) (4,295)
HEME AR 2 WS Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (356) -
HENE BERREZ Loss (gain) on disposal of property,
&8 (lhss) plant and equipment 13 (487)
BiEEE RN E£E Share of results of a joint venture (131) (577)
ABRELES (W) FHE Unrealised exchange loss (gain), net 1,131 (2,847)
RATEEESE A2 Operating cash flows before movements in

REBRERE working capital (28,837) (18,592)
SRS M) m (Increase) decrease in deposit paid (2,241) 8,436
=& (Em) md (Increase) decrease in inventories (3,844) 11,859
& E R RRIERD Decrease in amount due from a joint venture 131 577
YRR REMERRZ Decrease (increase) in trade and other

WA (1) receivables 7,420 (12,671)
FERBRR R EMEARZ (Decrease) increase in trade and

GRL4>) &1 other payables (2,710) 212

BEANBERD Decrease in provisions for onerous contracts - (452)
RELBFTARE Cash used in operations (30,081) (10,631)
(EN) EREBIE Tax (paid) refunded

—ENEBRNEHR - Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (14) (57)

-BREFEFEH - Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded - 712

—ENEBRIAER — Income tax outside Hong Kong paid (1,745) (1,217)
RETHFMARSFEE Net cash used in operating activities (31,840) (11,193)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE-Z-N4=A=+—HBI4Z For the year ended 31 March 2019

—E-NF ZE-N\F
2019 2018
FHET FTET
HK$’000 HK$'000
REED Investing activities
HEREMEZFRERE Proceeds from disposal of
an investment property 41,693 -
2WRE Interest received 307 443
BAME BERSZE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (11,881) (6,209)
BAREWMEZERNEZE Deposit paid for acquisition of
investment properties (12,094) -
HENME - MERREZFMBHIE Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and
equipment - 710
REZDHRB (MR REFRE Net cash from (used in) investing activities 18,025 (5,056)
METH Financing activities
ENARAAEERRZRE Dividends paid to equity shareholders
of the Company (11,517) (8,638)
EERTEE Repayment of bank borrowings (581) (581)
2RAE Interest paid (510) (189)
MEZTBFARESFE Net cash used in financing activities (12,608) (9,408)
HEeRBESEBYRD BE Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (26,423) (25,657)
RENZRERBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year 62,173 83,318
EX@FH o8 Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (5,030) 4,512
RERZRERRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year,
RERBITEHBRRRES representing bank balances and cash 30,720 62,173
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GENERAL

Moiselle International Holdings Limited (the “Company”;
and its subsidiaries collectively referred to as the “Group”)
is an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability under the Companies Law,
Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Its
ultimate holding company is Super Result Consultants
Limited (“Super Result”), a limited company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands. Mr. Chan Yum Kit (“Mr. Chan”),
the chairman and executive director of the Company, and
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley, executive director of the
Company, each holds 46.7% equity interest in Super
Result. The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
section of Corporate Information in the Company’s annual

report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are
design, manufacture and retail of fashion apparel and
accessories. Details of the principal subsidiaries of the

Company are set out in note 32.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is also the functional and

presentation currency of the Company.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments
to HKFRSs and an interpretation issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the

first time in the current year:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments

HK (IFRIC) — Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions

and Advance Consideration

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4

Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKAS 28 As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014 - 2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs and the interpretation in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these

consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18 Revenue,
HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related

interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect of initially applying this Standard
recognised at the date of initial application, 1 April 2018.
Any difference at the date of initial application is
recognised in the opening retained profits and comparative
information has not been restated. Furthermore, in
accordance with the transition provisions in HKFRS 15, the
Group has elected to apply the Standard retrospectively
only to contracts that are not completed at 1 April 2018.
Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared
under HKAS 18 and the related interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from sales of fashion apparel

and accessories which arise from contracts with customers.

Information about the Group’s performance obligations and
the accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS

15 are disclosed in notes 5 and 3 respectively.

Under HKAS 18, revenue from the sale of goods arising
from retailing business is recognised upon transfer of
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods,
which is when the goods are delivered and titles have
passed. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when
control over the goods is transferred to the customer. There
is no material impact on the timing and amounts of revenue
recognised upon the application of HKFRS 15 on 1 April
2018.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related
amendments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 and the
related consequential amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS
9 introduces new requirements for 1) the classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities, 2)
expected credit losses (“ECL”) for financial assets and 3)

general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the
classification and measurement requirements (including
impairment under ECL model) retrospectively to instruments
that have not been derecognised as at 1 April 2018 (date of
initial application) and has not applied the requirements to
instruments that have already been derecognised as at 1
April 2018. The difference between carrying amounts as at
31 March 2018 and the carrying amounts as at 1 April
2018 are recognised in the opening retained profits and
other components of equity, without restating comparative

information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared
under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and

Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 9

are disclosed in note 3.

Classification and measurement of financial assets

All financial assets and financial liabilities continue to be
measured on the same bases as were previously measured
under HKAS 39.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related
amendments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

As at 1 April 2018, the directors of the Company reviewed
and assessed the Group’s existing financial assets for
impairment using reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort in accordance
with the requirements of HKFRS 9.

The Group applies simplified approach to measure ECL
which uses a lifetime ECL for all trade receivable arising
from its principal activities. To measure the ECL, trade
receivable arising from its principal activities are assessed
individually for each debtor based on past due analysis and
relevant forward-looking information. Based on assessment
by the management of the Group, the ECL for trade
receivable arising from its principal activities is

insignificant.

For other receivables and deposits, the management of the
Group makes periodic individual assessment on their
carrying amounts, based on historical settlement records
and past experience with available reasonable and
supportive forward-looking information. Based on
assessment by the management of the Group, it considers
that the 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") for these balances is

insignificant.

For bank balances, the Group considers the risk of default
is low and 12m ECL is insignificant as the Group only
transacts with reputable banks with high credit ratings

among rating agencies.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property
The amendments clarify that a transfer to, or from,
investment property necessitates an assessment of whether
a property meets, or has ceased to meet, the definition of
investment property, supported by observable evidence that
a change in use has occurred. The amendments further
clarify that situations other than the ones listed in HKAS 40
may evidence a change in use, and that a change in use is
possible for properties under development and properties

held for sale.

At the date of initial application, the Group assessed the
classification of certain properties based on conditions
existing at that date. The application of amendments to
HKAS 40 did not have significant impact on the Group’s

transfers of investment properties.

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs and an interpretation that have

been issued but are not yet effective:
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases'

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®

HK (IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business*

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation’

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its
HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material®
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement'

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures'

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015 - 2017 Cycle'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

’ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

! Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for

which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the
first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020

’ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020

Except as described below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of all other new and
amendments to HKFRSs and the interpretation will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements in

the foreseeable future.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations

when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the
basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a
customer. In addition, HKFRS 16 requires sales and
leaseback transactions to be determined based on the
requirements of HKFRS 15 as to whether the transfer of the
relevant asset should be accounted as a sale. HKFRS 16
also includes requirements relating to subleases and lease

modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are
removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model
where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability
have to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for
short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that
date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest
and lease payments, as well as the impact of lease
modifications, amongst others. For the classification of cash
flows, the Group currently presents operating lease
payments as operating cash flows. Upon application of
HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will
be allocated into a principal and an interest portion which
will be presented as financing and operating cash flows
respectively by the Group.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an asset
and a related finance lease liability for finance lease
arrangement and prepaid lease payments for leasehold
lands where the Group is a lessee. The application of
HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes in classification
of these assets depending on whether the Group presents
right-of-use assets separately or within the same line item at
which the corresponding underlying assets would be

presented if they were owned.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable
to lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to
require a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating

lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS
16.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$157,126,000 as
disclosed in note 27. A preliminary assessment indicates
that these arrangements will meet the definition of a lease.
Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of
all these leases unless they qualify for low value or

short-term leases.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid of HK$36,360,000 and refundable rental
deposits received of HK$853,000 as rights and obligations
under leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the
definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such
deposits are not payments relating to the right to use the
underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of
such deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost.
Adjustments to refundable rental deposits paid would be
considered as additional lease payments and included in
the carrying amount of right-of-use assets. Adjustments to
refundable rental deposits received would be considered as

advance lease payments.

The application of new requirements may result in changes
in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated
above. The Group elected the practical expedient to apply
HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified as
leases applying HKAS 17 and HK (IFRIC) - Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease and
not apply this standard to contracts that were not
previously identified as containing a lease applying HKAS
17 and HK (IFRIC) — Int 4. Therefore, the Group did not
reassess whether the contracts are, or contain a lease which
already existed prior to the date of initial application.
Furthermore, the Group elected the modified retrospective
approach for the application of HKFRS 16 as lessee and
recognises the cumulative effect of initial application to
opening retained profits without restating comparative

information.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for the investment
properties and leasehold land and buildings, where the
leasehold land is classified as being held under a finance
leases, which are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set

out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS
2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of

Assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the

asset in its highest and best use.

For investment properties which are transferred at fair value
and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to be
used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that the results of the

valuation technique equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which

are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity

can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or

liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. When assessing whether the Group has power,
only substantive rights (held by the Group and other

parties) are considered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to

the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect to measure any
non-controlling interests either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the

subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the

Company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)
Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no

gain or loss is recognised.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment

losses.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group and
other parties contractually agree to share control of the
arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of the

arrangement.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s
share of the acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s
identifiable net assets over the cost of the investment (if
any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the post
acquisition change in the Group’s share of the investee’s
net assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax results of the investees, any impairment losses for
the year and the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income are recognised in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Joint ventures (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
joint venture, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying amount of
the investment under the equity method together with the
Group’s long-term interests that in substance form part of

the Group’s net investment in the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence or
joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former investee at the date when
significant influence or joint control is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on

initial recognition of a financial asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation. These include land

held for a currently undetermined future use.

Investment properties are stated at fair value. Any gain or
loss arising from a change in fair value or from the
retirement or disposal of an investment property is

recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investment properties (continued)

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted for as
an investment property on a property-by-property basis.
Any such property interest which has been classified as an
investment property is accounted for as if it were held
under a finance lease, and the same accounting policies are
applied to that interest as are applied to other investment

properties leased under finance leases.

Property, plant and equipment

The land held for own use classified as being held under
finance lease and buildings thereon are stated at their
revalued amount, being their fair value at the date of the

revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity to
ensure that the carrying amount of these assets does not
differ materially from that which would be determined

using fair values at the end of the reporting period.

Other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at

cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties held for
own use are generally dealt with in other comprehensive
income and are accumulated separately in equity in the
property revaluation reserve. The only exceptions are as

follows:

e when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be charged
to profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the
amount held in the reserve in respect of that same

asset immediately prior to the revaluation; and

e when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a deficit on
revaluation in respect of that same asset had

previously been charged to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal. Any related
revaluation surplus is transferred from the property
revaluation reserve to retained profits and is not reclassified

to profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation
of items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight line

method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over

the shorter of the unexpired terms of lease and their

estimated useful lives, being 50 years from the date of

completion.

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of 5 years
and the period of the lease

Plant and machinery 10 years

Furniture and fixtures 5 to 10 years

Computer and office 3 to 5 years
equipment
Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item
is allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of
an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed

annually.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset. Other than investment properties measured
under fair value model, such costs are recognised as an

expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on

a straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised

as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and
building are considered separately for the purpose of lease
classification, unless the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and building elements,
in which case, the entire lease is generally treated as a
finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment. To the extent the allocation of the lease
payments can be made reliably, leasehold interests in land
are accounted for as operating leases and amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis except for those that
are classified and accounted for as investment properties

under the fair value model.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in

order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of tangible assets are estimated
individually, when it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating
unit (“CGU”) to which the asset belongs. Where a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
CGUs, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent allocation

basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a CGU) for which the

estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in

profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of tangible assets (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a CGU) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net

realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out formula and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their

present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the

sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any
write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an

expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual

provisions of the instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as

appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

Interest income which is derived from the Group’s ordinary

course of business is presented as revenue.

Financial assets

Classification and measurement of financial assets (upon
application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in
note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to

collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets (upon
application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in
note 2) (continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is
no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the asset
is no longer credit-impaired.

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9
(including trade and other receivables and bank balances).
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessments are made based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to debtors, general economic conditions and
assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting

date as well as the forecast of future conditions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9

with transitions in accordance with note 2) (continued)

Except for trade receivables to which the Group applies the

simplified approach to recognise lifetime ECL, for all other

financial assets, ECL is measured at 12m ECL unless when

there has been a significant increase in credit risk since

initial recognition, in which case the Group recognises

lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL

should be recognised is based on significant increases in

likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial

recognition.

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without

undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has

increased significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or

internal credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap

prices for the borrower or debtor;
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9

with transitions in accordance with note 2) (continued)

(i)

(if)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

e existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
borrower’s or debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the borrower or debtor;

e an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environments of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the borrower’s or debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information

that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking
into account any collaterals held by the Group).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9

with transitions in accordance with note 2) (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Definition of default (continued)

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is

more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired

includes observable data about the following events:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower;

e a breach of contract, such as a default or past due

event;

e the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would

not otherwise consider; or

e it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9

with transitions in accordance with note 2) (continued)

(iv)  Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings, whichever
occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are

recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with

the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the

effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised cost

of the financial asset.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018)

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the

time of initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and other receivables and
bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified impairment

losses.

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS
9on 1 April 2018)

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at
the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated

future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty; or

e breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in

interest and principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS
9 on 1 April 2018) (continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
impairment loss is recognised as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial

asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of loans receivable, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When an item of loans
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of

amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the

definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue

costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and
secured bank borrowings) are subsequently measured at

amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the assets expire.
On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and

receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when and only
when the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration

paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application
of HKFRS 15 in accordance with transitions in note 2)
Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or
as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when

I//

“control” of the goods or services underlying the particular

performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of

distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application
of HKFRS 15 in accordance with transitions in note 2)
(continued)
Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of

the following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as

the Group performs;

e the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset

that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance

completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when

the customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of

consideration is due) from the customer.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 April 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the

economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue

and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue

is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customers have
accepted the goods and the related risks and rewards
of ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade

discounts.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of leased
asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease

payments receivable.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using

effective interest method.

Service fee income
Service fee income is recognised when the related
services are rendered and the amount receivable can

be measured reliably.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be

material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of
tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous

years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses

and unused tax credits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future
taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from
the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be

utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not
part of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will

reverse in the future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value
in accordance with the accounting policy set out above, the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using the
tax rates that would apply on sale of those assets at their
carrying value at the reporting date unless the property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the
assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will

be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the individual entity or the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional

conditions are met:

e in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
individual entity or the Group intends either to settle
on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the

liability simultaneously; or
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

e in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation

authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net

basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure

expected to settle the obligation.

Onerous contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are
recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous
contract is considered to exist where the Group has a
contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the
obligations under the contract exceed the economic

benefits expected to be received from the contract.

Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains

and losses are recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair

value was measured.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the transactions. Statement of financial position items are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in

equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of an operation outside Hong Kong, the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences relating to
that operation outside Hong Kong is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is

recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in

the period in which they are incurred.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Related parties

(i)

(if)

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is

related to the Group if that person:

(a)

(b)

(c)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(a)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the

others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or

an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (i).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued)
(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies: (continued)

(g) A person identified in (i)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel

services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be

influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of,

the Group’s various geographical locations.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these

estimates.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial

statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the directors of the Company have reviewed the
Group's investment property portfolios and concluded that
certain of the Group’s investment properties are held under
a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time. Therefore, in measuring
the Group’s deferred taxation on investment properties, the
directors of the Company have determined that the
presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties in the PRC measured using the fair value model
are recovered entirely through sale is rebutted. For certain
investment properties in Hong Kong on which the ‘sale’
presumption is not rebutted, the Group has not recognised
any deferred tax on changes in fair value of investment
properties in Hong Kong above the qualified cost as the
Group is not subject to any income taxes on the fair value
changes of the investment properties in Hong Kong above

the qualified cost on disposal.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that may have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year.

Impairment of leasehold improvements

The Group assesses annually whether leasehold
improvements have any indication of impairment in
accordance with the relevant accounting policies. If such
indication exists, the recoverable amounts of the CGUs to
which these assets belong would be determined by
reference to the higher of their value in use or fair value
less costs of disposal. Value in use is determined using the
discounted cash flow method. Due to inherent risk
associated with estimations in the timing and magnitude of
the future cash flows calculated with certain growth rate as
key input and fair value less costs of disposal, the estimated
recoverable amount of the assets may be different from
their actual recoverable amount and profit or loss could be

affected by the accuracy of the estimations.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Provision for onerous operating lease contracts

The Group recognises provision for onerous contracts based
on the estimated unavoidable costs of meeting all leases
and other obligations under the retail stores, net of
economic benefits expected to be received from the stores,
if any. The Group estimates the provision based on lower of
(i) the amount of compensation payment agreed with the
landlord as a result of early termination of leases, and (ii)
unfulfilled lease obligations and associated costs net of any
economic benefits estimated to be received from fulfilling
the lease contracts. Estimates differ depending on the
current rent, location, lease exit terms and management’s
assessment of when the lease term can be terminated early
and expected benefits to be received from fulfilling the
leases. Except for stores which termination contracts have
already been agreed with the landlords, the settlement of
these contracts may be different from the Group’s
estimation subject to the negotiation with the landlords and

the economic benefits estimated to be received.

Valuation of inventories

The Group performs regular review of the carrying amounts
of inventories with reference to aged inventories analysis,
historical consumption trends and management judgement.
Based on this review, write-down of inventories will be
made when the carrying amounts of inventories decline
below their estimated net realisable value. Due to changes
in market trends, actual consumption may be different from
estimation and profit or loss could be affected by accuracy

of this estimation.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)
Valuation of investment properties and land and buildings
held for own use

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties and
land and buildings for own use are calculated by an
independent firm of surveyors by making reference to the
rental yields and comparable market transactions. The
valuation models used by the property valuer make use of
market inputs. Should changes be made to the market
inputs, the corresponding investment properties and land

and buildings held for own use valuations would change.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not yet
used and temporary deductible differences. As those
deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the unused tax credits can be utilised,
management’s judgement is required to assess the
probability of future taxable profits. Management’s
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional deferred
tax assets are recognised if it becomes probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be

recovered.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue

The Group generated sales of fashion apparel and
accessories with customers through its own retail stores. For
the year ended 31 March 2019, revenue from sales of
fashion apparel and accessories is recognised at a point in
time when the goods are delivered to the customers. For
the year ended 31 March 2018, revenue represents the
invoiced value of goods sold, excluding value added tax

and net of trade discounts.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Revenue (continued)

Performance obligations for contracts with customers
Revenue from sales of fashion apparel and accessories is
recognised when control of the goods has transferred, being
at the point where the customer purchases and takes the
goods at the retail stores directly or when the goods have
been transported to the customers’ specified location
(delivery). Transportation and other related activities that
incurred before customers obtain control of the related
products are considered as fulfilment activities. Payment of
the transaction price is generally due immediately at the
point the customer purchases the goods in the retail stores.
The transaction price received by the Group for goods that
require delivery is recognised as a contract liability until

the goods have been delivered to the customer.

Customer loyalty programme

The Group operates a customer loyalty programme for sales
through the Group’s retail stores where customers
accumulate award points for purchases made which entitle
them to redeem award points as sales discounts in the
future. The transaction price is allocated to the product and
the award points on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis. The award points expire every year and customers
can redeem the award points any time before the specified
expiration date. Revenue from the award points is
recognised when the award points are used or expired.
Contract liabilities are recognised until the award points are
used or expired. The sales discounts is recognised against

revenue.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Revenue (continued)

Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligation for contracts with customers

As at 31 March 2019, contracts with customers with
unsatisfied performance obligations, including award points
under the customer loyalty programme, have original
expected durations of one year or less. As permitted under
HKFRS 15, the transaction prices allocated to these
unsatisfied performance obligations or customer loyalty

programme are not disclosed.

Segment information

The Group manages its businesses by geographical
locations. In a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s senior
executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the Group has
presented the following two reportable segments. No
operating segments have been aggregated to form the

following reportable segments.

- The Hong Kong operation represents the sales of house

brands and imported brands in Hong Kong.

- The Outside Hong Kong operation represents the
manufacture of house brands in the PRC and sales of
house brands and imported brands in the PRC, Macau,

Taiwan and Singapore.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the results attributable to

each reportable segment on the following bases:
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Wik D HEFR (&

DERE R ()
WERAXN2EZZEDBAEE 2 HERR
X AEAZREDMEEEEZINEREEM

PBWEAT2HIM -

AEATERSWENNBEMRABZFER
REFBR(TREFEAMBRA - HREREE
URETATBRRAMEERS) - FERTE
PTEREATEZBDA - AEESRATEELRE
RAFEEHRERATEIHROB2TE » AR
AETTRRAMEERAZERD BRE 2T
EFEKR UEEES - o BERZLREF
CAREEH -

FEEzOBEERABLEOAEESRIT
HEBEASER - At - WBRRALEZ5IA
FTERIMBEERAE -

ATFERI W BT BRER MM A LR
ZERTHEMRE -

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Segment information (continued)

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation of assets

attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reportable segment profit or loss is
loss from operations with the exception of other income,
other gains and losses and certain administrative and other
operating expenses. Income tax is not allocated to
reportable segments. The Group’s senior executive
management revisited the measurement of the reportable
segments during the year and considered certain
administrative and other operating expenses should be
excluded from the measurement of segment results for
better presentation. Comparative of segment information

has been updated accordingly.

Segment assets and liabilities of the Group are not reported
to the Group’s senior executive management. As a result,
reportable segment assets and liabilities have not been

presented in the financial statements.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the

same as the Group's accounting policies described in note 3.
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WaEkoHER (& 5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
DEER (4F) Segment information (continued)
0 ERRH st
Hong Kong Outside Hong Kong Total
“%-7% “E-N\F CE-AF CB-\F C¥-AF SE-0E
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

TE#x TEx  TEr TR  TEr  TER
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000

HREFWR Revenue from external customers 139,610 155616 111,411 134,960 251,021 290,576
A EEKE Inter-segment revenue 29,325 32,808 29,146 22,306 58,471 55,114
pak: 16 Segment revenue 168,935 188,424 140,557 157,266 309,492 345,690
AR (F8) Segment profit (loss) 13,995 25,819 (10,775) 5,294 3,220 31,113
RETEDBEERE A Amount regularly provided to the

I
TEHAAEESR Group's senior executive
HITEBERM 2S5 management included in the

measurement of segment results:

ERFE Depreciation for the year 2,707 1,807 4,110 4,258 6,817 6,065
NE BERHE Impairment losses on property, plant

ZHEEE and equipment = 16 1,478 3,224 1,478 3,240
BEENEE Provision (utilisation of provision) for

(BREE) T8 onerous contracts, net = (4,841) 2,563 (6,275) 2,563 (11,116)
TR 2 E Reversal of impairment losses on trade

BEED receivables - - - (5) _ (5)
DEEWETIIRETME 2 EHEAE © Inter-segment revenue is charged at amounts agreed by

both parties.
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Wi kD HEFR (&) REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
DEER (F) Segment information (continued)
7B 2 R EAE = HT R Reconciliation of segment revenue and results
—E-hF —E-N\F
2019 2018
FTHET THET
HK$’000 HK$'000
&= Revenue
D E 2 B R Total segment revenue 309,492 345,690
7 B W s 4 8 Elimination of inter-segment revenue (58,471) (55,114)
251,021 290,576
E ¥ Results
7 5B F Segment profit 3,220 31,113
ROBMAX Unallocated expenses (55,946) (58,491)
Ht g AR Efbi s R E B Other income and other gains and losses 7,821 5,756
REVMELAABEEZBH 2 WEH Gain on changes in fair value of
investment properties 27,790 27,594
IEEERRA KA Share of results of a joint venture 131 577
HEMRE QR 2 WE Gain on disposal of subsidiary 356 -
B E RS Finance costs (510) (189)
BRELAT (B518) a Fl (Loss) profit before taxation (17,138) 6,360

HEEH

TREHBEOAKEIREF WS S RIOAF
EEREME VX BERRBURREE
NEzER ((EEFRRDEE]) 2 BUEE
B BP2HBUBENIREXNERZLEE
EolREFRRBEEZHMBNENREEEZ
BERVE (MBREMEURDE  BERR
B REEHH (HERSE AR 2 #H) ME

Eo

Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from
external customers; and (ii) the Group’s investment
properties, property, plant and equipment, and interest in a
joint venture (“specified non-current assets”). The
geographical location of customers is based on the location
at which the goods were delivered. The geographical
location of the specified non-current assets is based on the
physical location of the asset in the case of investment
properties and property, plant and equipment, and the
location of operations in the case of interest in a joint

venture.
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5. WERIHBER (& 5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
DEER (4F) Segment information (continued)
ih B E R (4E) Geographic information (continued)
HREF WS EEXRRDEE
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
=F-NF —E-N\F =E-NF —E-N\F
2019 2018 2019 2018
FTHET FHET THER FTET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
£ Hong Kong 139,610 155,616 508,550 476,184
B P Macau 48,388 48,651 = 4
R E The PRC 34,795 48,562 175,158 169,151
=91 Taiwan 19,186 27,219 712 452
ESIIlIE Singapore 9,042 10,528 749 27
111,411 134,960 176,619 169,634
251,021 290,576 685,169 645,818
FHTEEFZEH Information about major customers
BE-Z-NWEFR-Z-N\F=ZA=+—H8L During the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018, there
FE HBERBE-IIRFEFZWSEAER was no single external customer that contributed 10% or

WA Z10%RE £ o more of the Group’s total revenue.
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6. HAthug A 6. OTHER INCOME
—E-hF —E-N\F
2019 2018
FET FHBT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BREMEHRS WAL Gross rental income from investment
properties 4,310 4,496
RITEAZHE WA Interest income from bank deposits 361 440
RS & WA Service fee income 1,013 764
Hith Others 434 1,073
6,118 6,773
7. HttBREE 7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

—E-NF —E2-N\F
2019 2018
FERT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BE s (E18) #88 Exchange gain (loss), net 1,716 (1,504)

HEWE BERREZ (Loss) gain on disposal of property, plant
(B#E) Wa and equipment (13) 487
1,703 (1,017)
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Fre®imx INCOME TAX EXPENSE
—ZE-hF —E-N\F
2019 2018
FHET FTER
HK$’000 HK$’000
AEABLIE - BB FEH Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax
REERE Provision for the year 28 103
BIEFEBEREB Overprovision in respect of prior years - (2)
28 101
AEABLIE — BB IR Current tax — Outside Hong Kong
REERE Provision for the year 1,745 325
EEFTEH Deferred tax 930 4,673
FrEBimx Income tax expense 2,703 5,099

R-ZZE—N\FE=ZF=+—H BBIULEBEB
“E—LFREK (BT (FB75) RHIER ([F
BIEZR]) » SIAWMRFRERZHE  REIE
RRZZE-NEF=A-+N\BEERAEE
WHAEBEFBERR - RIEW RS RN EE RS
B 6EKEEERE2,000000% 5T & F
H5128.25% M B = H - mi#iB2,000,0005 T
B3 I BIH216.5% MBI R EB o TRFS MR
MEFREFENEEER GG EER16.5%
WHE—BEHB - ARRESERAE > MAFA
SEHERHEBREMIR SEHGSVBHRE
MELFREKR B REWEBEFE  E5E
RE BB A R ARB G ERBEFZ
16.5%:TEEBFEH -

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passes The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill is signed into law on 28 March 2018 and
is gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2,000,000 of profits of
a qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits
above HK$2,000,000 will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of
group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of
16.5%. The directors of the Company consider the amount
involved upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime as insignificant to the consolidated financial
statements. Accordingly, Hong Kong Profits Tax for
subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong is calculated at 16.5%

of the estimated assessable profit for both years.
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MM (&

RIEBEFECERERE ((LEREH ) REE
FEBUEERMERAG > REIME AR MEFE
B EH25% ©

BB TS R32,0008 T (HER
31,0003 Jt) 1B 1K 74300,00052 F9 T (1 & R®
291,000/ 7T) MERBUW AR N F3%E9%M
SEREHM MESSBEAZREERE12%
MR- BE_T-NER-_ZT-N\F=A
ST-HLEFE BRMBFETEIBEBR
RIEHE - FESRB UL B9 % B 28 5 600,00052 P
7t (48 7M582,0005% jt) » & H600,0002 9
7t (BB E 582,000/ 7t) M FERBHE R Al iz E
EREI12%MF ©

REMREER (BREAERMMNK) B2
RMEDZRBBEAEREZRITRETE - BE
EE-NF=ZA=+—HLEE URARE
REFMFEzHBEBARZBERBRESBNE17%
(ZZ2—NF 1 17%) R17% (=T -\ F:
17%) °

RIFBROR R BARKEEERAEER B
BeHECHXE—_EBLE+A=+—-HZ

o HRAEBEMENELETHEBTMA
YzMBLAREEZERE  HEELLBANHR
RATE A 2 RHBRHER% KRARESER
B AEBEZEURBRIIRZZERF
FIAER D RZERE BANENS 2R IERRE
EFTE B A 1E5,026,0008 T (=T — \F :
9,231,000587T) °

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Under the law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”)
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT law, the tax rate
of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

Macau Complementary Tax is levied at progressive rates
ranging from 3% to 9% on the taxable income above
MOP32,000 (equivalent to HK$31,000) but below
MOP300,000 (equivalent to HK$291,000), and thereafter at
a fixed rate of 12%. For the years ended 31 March 2019
and 2018, a special complementary tax incentive was
provided to the effect that the tax free income threshold
was MOP600,000 (equivalent to HK$582,000) with profit
above MOP600,000 (equivalent to HK$582,000) being

taxed at a fixed rate of 12%.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions including Taiwan and
Singapore is calculated at the rate prevailing in the relevant
jurisdictions. During the year ended 31 March 2019, the
applicable tax rates for subsidiaries domiciled in Taiwan
and Singapore are 17% (2018: 17%) and 17% (2018: 17%)

respectively.

The Group is subject to withholding tax at a rate of 10%
(unless reduced by treaty) on distribution of profits
generated after 31 December 2007 from the Group’s
foreign-invested enterprises in the PRC. As all of the
Group's foreign-invested enterprises are directly and wholly
owned by Hong Kong incorporated subsidiaries, a reduced
rate of 5% is applicable in the calculation of this
withholding tax. Deferred tax liabilities of HK$5,026,000
(2018: HK$9,231,000) have not been recognised in respect
of the tax that would be payable on the distribution of
these retained profits since, in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, these earnings are not intended to be

distributed in the foreseeable future.
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i< (&)

FRAEHAXTRGFESESEREM2EKE
RFFEBBRBA (BB BEFNERAOT :

8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to

the (loss) profit before taxation per the consolidated

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

as follows:

—EF-hF —E-N\F
2019 2018
THERT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
FRELAT (B598) & F (Loss) profit before taxation (17,138) 6,360
BEMBEREREEERRES Notional tax at tax rates applicable to
(BE) &R MERHE (losses) profits in the tax jurisdictions
FEREBIE concerned (3,264) 1,133
TR 2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 2,716 1,985
BAGHRBRA KBS E Tax effect of non-taxable income (6,872) (5,626)
AEIRBEERBLE Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 10,957 6,341
FRACHAREBEZ Tax effect of tax losses utilised during the
BB year (289) (959)
BRBTFELEER Recognition of temporary difference not
HEER recognised in prior years - 2,227
BEFEBREEE Overprovision in respect of prior years = (2)
Hith Others (545) _
2,703 5,099
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9. FRUBR)RF 9.  (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
Fr (BB EFNSHERGA) THEE: (Loss) profit for the year is arrived at after charging
(crediting):
—EB-NnEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
THET THET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BIRAK Staff costs
EEM< (KIzE10) Directors’ remuneration (note 10) 10,972 11,582
Hh & TR Other staff costs
He FHWEEAMER Salaries, wages and other benefits 73,727 81,435
REMTORIKG BIER Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan 5,040 5,026
BT RAEEE Total staff costs 89,739 98,043
ZE D & Auditors’ remuneration 1,300 1,792
ME - -BERZBITE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 19,377 18,528
WE - BMERZHE2ZHMEESIE  Impairment losses on property, plant and
(FFADEREERIR) equipment (included in distribution and
selling expenses) 1,478 3,240
BOEWERR 2 REEE Reversal of impairment losses on trade
receivables = (5)
BRELEHESNZBE Provision (utilisation of provision) for
(B AR®) F8 GTA onerous operating lease contracts, net
DEREERIA) (included in distribution and selling
expenses) 2,563 (11,116)
T REEY EEHEEM  Operating lease charges in respect of land
and buildings
- REHEENK - minimum lease payments 105,957 105,772
- AR S - contingent rentals 4,747 7,629
REMEZHETWRAREE Rentals income from investment properties
¥ 266,000 T (=ZF—N less direct outgoings of HK$266,000
F 189,000/ 7T) (2018: HK$189,000) (4,044) (4,307)
BRAAEXIZHFERR Cost of inventories recognised as an
(HIBRE MR & expense (net of reversal of write-down of
8,133,000 T (ZF—/\F : inventories of HK$8,133,000 (2018:
4,295,000/&7T)) HK$4,295,000)) 45,793 68,787
RITEENER Interests on bank borrowings 510 189
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FR(EE)&EF (&)

BRABEICFERARBEEIRAER - TER
KEHE X R 218,434,0008 T (=&
— J\fF 119,883,000 7t) » BERIERFTA
BHERINAHEIBLFEE S BEESD -

EERFETHRAEHMS
AAREEE (RETETHAS) 2EAR
BB SRAIMT

9. (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (continued)
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense includes
HK$18,434,000 (2018: HK$19,883,000) relating to staff
costs, depreciation and operating lease charges, which
amount is also included in the respective total amounts

disclosed separately in this note for each of these expenses.

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the director of

the Company, including the chief executive, are as follows:

0
EER
EYEF
Salaries, RV
allowances FTEIMHE
and SRR 2N Retirement
ne benefits  Discretionary scheme mst
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
TER TET TERT THERT TER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
BE-Z-NF=A For the year ended
=t—HLEFE 31 March 2019
HiTEE Executive directors
BtE Mr. Chan - 5,883 - 18 5,901
BIneE Tsui How Kiu, Shirley - 3,958 - 18 3,976
[958 Chan Sze Chun = 807 = 18 825
BUFHTEZE  Independent non-executive
directors
REE Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 90 - - - 90
KR Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 90 - - - 90
i Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 90 - - _ 90

270 10,648 - 54 10,972
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10. EERFETHRAEME (&) 10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S EMOLUMENTS
(continued)
0
BER
ENEA
Salaries, BIK
allowances TEMR
and [SRCRI2N Retirement
e benefits  Discretionary scheme w@st
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
TERT TERT TERT TER TER
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BE-Z-N\FZH For the year ended
=t-HLEFE 31 March 2018

HITEE Executive directors

BEE Mr. Chan - 6,109 - 18 6,127
#hILE Tsui How Kiu, Shirley - 4,438 - 18 4,456
R B % Chan Sze Chun - 799 - 20 819

BUHHTEZE  Independent non-executive

directors

RE¥ Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 60 - - - 60
PN Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 60 - - - 60
B Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 60 - - - 60

180 11,346 - 56 11,582
e EURBEYERMNEERNAQATDESREM Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind include an
ZBETHREEY 2 HERE1,920,00058 amount of HK$1,920,000 (2018: HK$2,040,000) which
T (ZF—J\F 12,040,000 T) ° represents the market rental value of own land and

buildings provided to directors of the Company.
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10. EERIETBRAEME (&

RIARAES2HBRANESEREE 2
HERETD IRESSHE-

MEAEETAEALBDZETETHAL R LM
FiEEcHEEBRERESTETHASRHE
Rz -

EXRRBTESHEFERBREREEARLT
RASESEHMREERE 2ME -

EXRRBYFNTEScMEERRELE
RABREBHRERBZHME -

RMEFERN  AEEREINHETFAQT
EEFRAREBERENBEREEYNINBERE 28
ERBEREE - EMEFERN  WELAQAFE
ERERETME -

10. DIRECTORS’” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)
The discretionary bonuses to the directors of the Company
are determined by reference to the Group’s performance

and approved by the Board of Directors.

Mr. Chan is also the chief executive of the Company and
his emoluments disclosed above include those for services

rendered by him as the chief executive officer.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services in connection with the management of the

affairs of the Company and the Group.

The emoluments of the independent non-executive
directors shown above were for their services as directors of

the Company.

During both years, no emoluments was paid by the Group
to the directors of the Company as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office. None of the directors of the Company has waived

any emoluments in both years.
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1. EZEEME AL 11.

AuGESHEALH WU (ZE-NF W
) EEZHECRME10FEIE - Hif=
L(ZE-NF =) AT 2HERT|NOT :

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two
(2018: two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed
in note 10. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of

the other three (2018: three) individuals are as follows:

—E-NF —E2-N\F

2019 2018

THER THERT

HK$’000 HK$'000

e EEREYER Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 5,641 5,377
B 1518 AL Discretionary bonuses 410 1,077
ERET B X Retirement scheme contributions 42 54
6,093 6,508

ZEN(ZE-NF =) MesEs ALt 2

The emoluments of the three (2018: three) individuals with

EETHHER : the highest emoluments are within the following bands:
AE
Number of individuals
—E-hF —E-N\F
2019 2018
1,000,001 7t — 1,500,000 7t HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1 -
1,500,001 7t —2,000,000% 7t HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 - 1

2,000,001 7t —2,500,000& 7t  HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2 2
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12. RE 12. DIVIDENDS
—E-hF —E-N\F
2019 2018
FHET FTER
HK$’000 HK$’000
TEFEERE : Dividends during the year:
ENFEHRE Interim dividends paid:
REEBE-NFRE Nil in respect of 2019 (2018: HK1 cent
(Z=2—-NF: per share in respect of 2018)
BT \FRERIEW - 2,879
ERNREPRE : Final dividends paid:
REZBE-NFARABRIEBA HK4 cents per share in respect of 2018
(ZZ2-N\F: (2018: HK2 cents per share in respect
Bm-ZF—tFBER2BAW) of 2017) 11,517 5,759
11,517 8,638
BE-_Z-NFZA=ZT-RLFEHH X Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2018 of HK4
RABERRKNBE-ZE-NF=ZA=+— cents per share approximately to HK$11,517,000 was
BLEEEZRBREER4BLNT,517,000 declared and paid by the Company during the year ended
BT RBMEMHRZIEOAQREBRRKE 31 March 2019. No dividend was paid or proposed for
TR REREMRE ordinary shareholders of the Company subsequent to the

end of the reporting period.
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13. B8R (EH) BF 13. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE
AREEBEAEBEERES (BER) BAIIR The calculation of the basic (loss) earnings per share
BUTEIETE - attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

(EE) BT (Loss) earnings
—E-NF —E-N\F
2019 2018
FTHET THERT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BLUGTEERERX (EiE) (Loss) profit for the year for the purposes of
BRzFR (EE) &7 basic (loss) earnings per share (19,717) 2,007
ROEE Number of shares
—B-NEF —E-NF
2019 2018
TR TR
‘000 ‘000
AUGESRER (F1B) Weighted average number of ordinary
BEFzEBRMEFITH shares for the purpose of basic (loss)
earnings per share 287,930 287,930
HARAATRMEFETREMABEENZ Diluted (loss) earnings per share is not presented as the
TERG ELHTEZ2ISREE (FE) B Company does not have any dilutive potential ordinary

A e share for both years.
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14. ¥ BERRBUARRENE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT

PROPERTIES
BB
B EER
W2 A E5IK HAEEE
BEERZ kRE
THREEN Furniture,
Land and fixtures, nE BER
buildings computer Rt
held for T£2E  and office HEN% Sub-total
own use R#H  equipment B of property, RENE
carried at Plantand  and motor Leasehold plantand  Investment &t
fair value ~ machinery vehicles improvements  equipment properties Total
Tiéx TR TiEn Téx TR TEn TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000  HKS$'000
RARGE: Cost or valuation:
R=E-t5MA-R At 1 April 2017 383,904 4299 23,862 48,391 460,456 155,855 616,311
EAAZ Exchange adjustments 6,063 340 490 826 7,719 - 7,719
gE Additions - 47 1,241 4921 6,209 - 6,209
HE/HH Disposalsfwrite-off - (487) (3,106) (14373) (17,966) - (17.966)
BIHREENERZRENE  Transfer from land and buildings to
investment properties (13,179) - - - (13,179 13,179 -
EfRES Surplus on revaluation 73,219 - - - 73,219 - B3Ny
A B TEN Less: Elimination of accumulated
depreciation on revaluation (10,763) - - - (10,763 - (10,763
RERZERADAEEN Increase in fair value recognised
in profit or loss - - - - - 27,594 27,594
RZB-NEZA=t1-H At 31 March 2018 439,244 4,199 22,487 39,765 505,695 196,628 702,323
EiRR Exchange adjustments (3,940) (277) (438) (548) (5,203) - (5,203)
BE Additions - 72 528 11,281 11,881 - 11,881
HE /i Disposalshwrite-off - (160) (248) (8,247) (8,655) (41,693)  (50,349)
HIBRRENERERETE  Trandfer from land and buildings to
investment properties (100,000) - - - (100,000 100,000 -
EfRES Surplus on revaluation 66,788 = = - 66,788 - 66788
B EREHTENY Less: Elimination of accumulated
depreciation and revaluation (11,380) - - - (11,380) - (11,380)
RBHZBRADAEEM Increase in fair value recognised
in profit or loss - = - - = 27,790 27,790
RZE-nEZfA=1-A At 31 March 2019 390,712 3,634 22,329 42,251 459,126 282,725 741,851
fik: Representing;
B Cost - 3,634 22,319 4,251 68,414 - o84
e Valuation 390,712 - - - 390,712 282,725 673,437
390,712 3,634 22,329 42,251 459,126 282,725 741,851
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14. ¥ BERRBUARRENE (&

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES (continued)

BBz
B BER
R REIIR BAERE
BERZ kRE
1HREEN Furniture,
Land and fixtures, ER T
buildings computer Rt
held for T££E  and office HENE Sub-total
own use R#H  equipment £ of property, REN%
carried at Plantand ~ and motor Leasehold plantand  Investment @it
fairvalue  machinery vehicles  improvements  equipment properties Total
TR TERL TiEn TiEn TERL Tién  TiEn
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000  HKS$'000
HERAE: Depreciation and impairment:
RZE-tEmA-R At April 2017 - 3,535 20,532 37,172 61,839 - 61,839
ER@E Exchange adjustments - 286 377 741 1,404 - 1,404
KEENE Charge for the year 10,763 8 1,228 6,455 18,526 - 18528
REGZERARESS Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss - - - 3,40 3,40 - 3,40
HE /s Disposalsfwrite-off - (440) (3,014) (14,269) (17,743) -7
BB Elimination on revaluation (10,763) - - - (10,763) - (10,763
RZE-NEZA=1-A At 31 March 2018 = 3,463 19,123 33,919 56,505 - 56,505
Eji@E Exchange adjustments - o) (312) (133) (656) - (656)
KEENE Charge for the year 11,380 56 1,04 6,917 19377 - 19377
REEZEEIHERE Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss - - = 1478 1,478 - 1478
HE /M Disposals/write-off - (160) (235) (8,247) (8,642) - (8,642)
EffRYE Elimination on revaluation (11,380) - = - (11,380) = (11,380)
RZE-NE=RA=1-A At 31 March 2019 - 3,148 19,600 33,934 56,682 = 56,682
REFE: Net book value:
RZE-NEZA=1-H At 31 March 2019 390,712 686 2,729 8,317 402,444 282,725 685,169
RZE-NE=f=1-H At 31 March 2018 439,244 736 3,364 5,846 449,190 196,628 045,618

R-ZZE-HhhFE=ZA=+—-H HKHEHS

30,300,000 5t (ZZ— \F : 25,670,000
) 2T REEYMEHMBITEEERAEF (R
MzE22) o

RZ=ZZE—h&F E1E100,000,0008 T (==
— & 113,179,000 ) 2 L REEYE
RYEABRRBEERERENE  WREE
BRARGER DERBBFEEER HHEE
ABRBERRH-

At 31 March 2019, land and buildings with carrying
amounts of HK$30,300,000 (2018: HK$25,670,000) were
pledged against bank borrowings (see note 22).

In 2019, land and buildings to the value of
HK$100,000,000 (2018: HK$13,179,000) was transferred to
the investment properties upon a change in use of the
properties as evidenced by the end of owner occupation
and the said properties became held for capital

appreciation and/or rental purposes.
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14. ¥ BERRBUARREWE (&)

E-Z-NF BRBENEBERESSEEH
FiRpNETREELEN (ZE-N\F &
BEBREBIRINER) $FEEE  BEREE
VE - BERZETEDHE - BHIt » ]AF
EECFMERYE BERZREZATRES
B OMZEEECRABECHMRERSE 2T
Bl &£ %8746,000/8 T (ZE— \F : &) < HE
E5181,478,000% T (=& — JUF © 3,240,000
BT ERERER - TRESBENGEF IR
BRSEEMBrReELENEAGERE
BEI135%(ZF—N\F 1 13.5%) mEH -

FEEMEZQAAEFE
REZEBE-NF=ZA=Z+—8 FEEYPXEZL
AEDRBEAEEVEBEE 2 SEREXY
EEMPRABMITERAIT (22 -/\F:
B EEFEEEERATD) R=ZE-NF
ZA=t-RETZAEREEMSEL - RE
EHBYENRAAER  AEENSRITHE
EECHAEMREENMERTIRAAE
SAENEARE -

14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES (continued)

In 2019, certain CGUs, as identified based on each retail
stores, of the Outside Hong Kong operation (2018: Hong
Kong operation and Outside Hong Kong operation)
recorded losses which indicate the relevant property, plant
and equipment might have been impaired. As a result, the
directors of the Company reviewed the recoverable amount
of the relevant property, plant and equipment and the
carrying amount of such assets was written down to their
recoverable amount of HK$746,000 (2018: nil). An
impairment loss of HK$1,478,000 (2018: HK$3,240,000)
was recognised in profit or loss. The estimates of
recoverable amount were based on value in use of the
CGUs to which these assets belong at a discount rate of
13.5% (2018: 13.5%).

Fair value measurement of the Group’s properties

The fair value of the Group’s properties as at 31 March
2019 were arrived at on the basis of valuation carried out
as at 31 March 2019 by Centaline Surveyors Limited (2018:
Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited), independent firm
of qualified professional property valuers not connected
with the Group. In determining the fair value of the
relevant properties, the Group’s senior executive
management has discussion with the valuer on the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value

measurements.
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14. NE -BERZEURKREYE (&) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES (continued)

TEBWEZARETE (F) Fair value measurement of the Group’s properties

(continued)

RB|ERR - AEENERERAAABERN

Details of the Group’s properties and information about the

EXFEBRIOT : fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period are
as follows:
R=F—-h%F
=ZA=+-H
ZRRME
Fair value
F= as at 31
Level 3 March 2019
THET THERT
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEMARETE Recurring fair value measurement
REME: Investment properties:
&% Hong Kong 171,805 171,805
HEl The PRC 110,920 110,920
BFFEAZLtHRESEY Land and buildings held for own use:
58 Hong Kong 327,495 327,495
FE The PRC 63,217 63,217
R=F— \E
ZA=+t-—
2z A\JLE
Fair value
B=ZR as at 31
Level 3 March 2018
TR THERT
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEEMALE]E Recurring fair value measurement
REWMFE Investment properties:
B8 Hong Kong 93,057 93,057
] The PRC 103,571 103,571
BEARz L RESEY Land and buildings held for own use:
B8 Hong Kong 367,302 367,302
R E The PRC 71,942 71,942
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14. ¥ BERRBUARREWE (&)

FEEMEZRAAERE(F)

BE-Z-NWEF=A=+—-HLFE  REH

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT

PROPERTIES (continued)
Fair value measurement of the Group’s properties

(continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2019, there were no

RN EASER(ZE-N\F &) o transfers into or out of Level 3 (2018: nil).

EXFTUHR

BAHE

HER* Significant
Valuation unobservable €E
techniques inputs Range
REBZREME-IX HEBEE BEENEEFHZ -8.3% - 8.7%
Investment properties in Hong Kong Direct comparison RiE (%) (ZB-NE:
- Industrial approach Premium (discount) -30% - 11%)
on quality of the (2018: -30% - 11%)

buildings
REBZRENE-T% LON-V.N |43 Rz 2.5% - 4.0%
Investment properties in Hong Kong Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate (ZB-NF:
- Industrial approach 3.2% -3.5%)
(2018: 3.2% - 3.5%)
RABZRENE-T% BWAERE BRx 4.0%
Investment properties in the PRC Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate (Z2—-N\F 16.5%)
- Industrial approach (2018: 6.5%)
ROBEZRENE - BF WAERLE BRLR 6.4%
Investment properties in the PRC Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate (ZZ2-N\E 1 5%)
- Commercial approach (2018: 5%)
RPBEZRENE-H%E WAERLE BRLR 4.0%
Investment properties in the PRC Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate (Z2-N§:
- Residential approach 4.0%)
(2018: 4.0%)
REBBFEERZIBREEN-IX BELEE REENEE -24.9% - 5.1%
Land and buildings held for own use in Hong Kong Direct comparison e 2R ME (H738) (Z2-NF:
— Industrial approach  Premium (discount) on 5% — 12%)
quality of the buildings (2018: -5% - 12%)
REBREERAZIHREEN-FE BEERBE REENES -1.8% - 11.7%
Land and buildings held for own use in Hong Kong Direct comparison e 2R ME (%) (ZB-NF:
- Residential approach  Premium (discount) on -10% ~ 45%)
quality of the buildings (2018: -10% - 45%)
RABEFEERz L REEY -E % BELBE HEENES -7.9% - 4.5%
Land and buildings held for own use in the PRC Direct comparison e 2R ME (%) (Z2-N%&:
- Commercial approach  Premium (discount) on 7% — 3%)
quality of the buildings (2018: -7% - 3%)
RPEFFERZIBREEN -2 BEELEE HEENEE -6.4% - 6.2%
Land and buildings held for own use in the PRC Direct comparison B 287 (47 %) (Z2-N%F:
- Residential approach  Premium (discount) on 27% - -2%)

quality of the buildings

(2018: -27% - -2%)
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14. ¥ BERRBUARREWE (&)

UREBRTEFFEAZ I REENY 2D
AREDSZHRGEAFLLRNEESRE &
DA EEEEERE -

REMEZAARBEIONZEHBHETHELR
MEERE  ZAMMSEEREE S H(iER
FHEFEEZHERETEBRARBER
L EE o

BEELBUGEMERZZERTE  DEEEE
MESTMEENLLE - EEMERRS  EE
TERE BEFLIAEHEBLH -

WERERMCEERNERNMRRARREEN
EHTSESER  EARAREERVEM
EHBAE - AREMNEETSHESEEARAEE
BE EHERRBEERR -

EMBFERZI W REEYMEECEGR
£266,788,000/8 5t (ZZ — N\ : 73,219,000
BRT)REMEAKRGSER - i L Z2FES
Azt REEVYIRE LR EFTITES
B - R=ZZE-hE=ZRA=+—-B2EKEEESE
75,235,000 5T (=& — \F : 87,043,000/%

JT) °

REMEQNARBEEEESE 2WE27,790,000
BT (ZZF— N\ :27,594,000/87) EREZR
"R o

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT

PROPERTIES (continued)

The fair value of land and buildings held for own use
located in Hong Kong and the PRC is determined on an
open market value basis, by making reference to the

comparable sales evidence in the relevant locality.

The fair value of investment properties is determined (i) on
an open market value basis, by making reference to the
comparable sales evidence in the relevant locality; or (ii) by
capitalising the current rent derived from the existing
tenancies with the provision for any revisionary income

potential.

The premium or discount used in direct comparison
approach is specific to the building compared to the recent
sales. Higher premium for higher quality buildings will

result in a higher fair value measurement.

The capitalisation rate used in income capitalisation
approach has been adjusted for the expected market rental
growth, occupancy rate and quality and location of the
building. The fair value measurement is positively
correlated to the market rental value and negatively

correlated to the capitalisation rate.

Revaluation surplus of HK$66,788,000 (2018:
HK$73,219,000) arising from revaluation of land and
buildings held for own use is recognised in other
comprehensive income. Had the above land and buildings
held for own use been carried at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation, the carrying amounts would
have been HK$75,235,000 (2018: HK$87,043,000) at 31
March 2019.

The gain arising from changes in fair value of investment
properties of HK$27,790,000 (2018: HK$27,594,000) is

recognised in profit or loss.
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15. REE QB ZER 15. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE
—ZE-hF —E-N\F
2019 2018
TER FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEE A RRIE Amount due from a joint venture = 6,997
ELREEFE Share of net liabilities - (6,997)

RZZ-NETAZ+TRE  FEEEELR
ENAZRBEERTAQNAUNTES

FEEREGE QRS (UERERGEEY

BE|RIIR) BT -

of the Company, at nil consideration.

was accounted for using the equity method in the

On 26 October 2018, the Group transferred its equity

interests in the joint venture to Mr. Chan, executive director

Details of the Group’s interest in the joint venture, which

consolidated financial statements, are as follows:

AEEEERE
Attributable equity
interest to the Group

% EMER LR BRTR

REREA Benk BRRAHE

RELNRER Form of Place of Particulars
Name of business incorporation ofissuedand =F-NE —Z-N\% TEXE
joint venture structure and operation paid up capital 2019 2018 Principal activity
Sequoia HK, Limited AR AR £ 1008 & 49 50% 50% TER
Incorporated Hong Kong 100 shares AR & 2 B2 8
Retail of fashion
apparel and

REBE -2 8H 5% 2 FSequoia HK,

LimitedJ33F EH A &] °

accessories

Sequoia HK, Limited, the only joint venture in which the

Group participates, was an unlisted corporate entity.
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15. REERTIZER (&

BELNA Y BERRE-FAEEERES

15. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued)

Group's effective interest:

Summary of financial information on the joint venture - the

—E-N\E

2018

FExT

HK$’000

RBEE Current assets 77
REEE Current liabilities (7,074)
BEFEE Net liabilities (6,997)
=E-N\F —E-tF

A—HBZ MA—HZE

=E2-N\F —E-N\F

+tA=+tER =A=t-*H

1.4.2018 1.4.2017

to to

25.10.2018 31.3.2018

FTExT FEBT

HK$’000 HK$’000

WA Income 1,476 1,004
a3 Expenses (1,345) (427)
FREF Profit for the year 131 577




16.

17.

Moiselle International Holdings Limited % i I B 4 M & | 2 )
Annual Report 2019 4 4E #

A 7 T 25 A Mk

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-Z-N4=A=+—HBI4Z For the year ended 31 March 2019

ENEE 16. DEPOSITS PAID
“E-hEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
THERT TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
HekHEMES Rental and other deposits 39,307 40,664
WERENEXZENES Deposit paid for acquisition of investment
(BfFEE) properties (note) 12,094 -
51,401 40,664
W HERHEMES (FFA Less: Rental and other deposits
FE Uk BR K2 EL At FE UK R (included in trade and other
(FFzE18) ;) receivables (note 18)) (23,626) (27,099)
27,775 13,565
M : BE-T-NWEF=ZA=1+—-HLFEH Note: During the year ended 31 March 2019, a deposit of
B £ AK%10,522,000t (HHERK RMB10,522,000 (equivalent to approximately
12,094,000 7t) B AEZ A W BB L 1A HK$12,094,000) was paid as full consideration for
BleEEREEML22MNRE- acquisition of a unit in a commercial building situated in
the PRC.
e 17. INVENTORIES
—E-h%F —E-N\F
2019 2018
THET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
= Raw materials 1,741 2,930
EEMm Work in progress 499 1,462
SRR M Finished goods 57,255 44,812
59,495 49,204

AAREBLTIHEAEEFERN-_Z—NE=
A=+—-B2uZ2RFERMKR  URAEEE
GFEMORS,133,0008 T (Z2—N\F : #E17F
EMUR4,295,0008 ) BAE -

The directors of the Company have assessed the net
realisable values and condition of the Group’s inventories
as at 31 March 2019 and have considered reversal of
write-down of inventories of HK$8,133,000 (2018: reversal
of write-down of inventories of HK$4,295,000) to be
appropriate.
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18. BEWERR R HMEWR 18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

—E-hF —E-N\F

2019 2018

THET FTAET

HK$’000 HK$'000

FE W BR =X Trade receivables 9,262 13,143

W EERE Less: Loss allowance _ (22)
9,262 13,121

HERHEMERE - RB Rental and other deposits — current 23,626 27,099
AT FRIE Prepayment 1,830 3,180
H {th & WK Other receivables 839 696
35,557 44,096

RB|BEMR - REZEAHAELNBREERE
ZRWERRZREDTAOT ¢

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
trade receivables, based on invoice date and net of loss

allowance, is as follows:

—E-NF =F-N\F

2019 2018

THER TiEx

HK$’000 HK$’000

30BR Within 30 days 7,618 10,783
31HZE90H 31 to 90 days 1,573 1,685
91HZ180H 91 to 180 days - 486
H#iB180H Over 180 days 71 167
9,262 13,121

FEWIRA AR A MEI30E00B B - A&
BEERER2E - SHBTENMTE29 -

Trade receivables are due within 30 to 90 days from the
invoice date. Further details on the Group’s credit policy

are set out in note 29.
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FE U BR R H b P U R (78 )

RZEBE-AE=ZA=+—-8 st AKREEENK
R 7% 45 82 B 42 BRI {H649,00078 7T 2 FE K BR
FoBERERBREAHCES - NS
B 71,0008 T E B0 L > AR
AARESRAHEZEUFHELRY HE
BREREERTHERY  HEBEKRNEAT
2HWE ARTEFERBEN - AEBEALE
REZEERSTEEMIKFS -

RZE-NE=A=+—8  UEEBIHLE
BEABRE2ERERERZREDITAOT :

18.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

As at 31 March 2019, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$649,000 which are past due as at the
reporting date. Out of the past due balances, HK$71,000
has been past due 90 days or more and is not considered as
in default as the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that the balances are still considered fully
recoverable due to long-term/on-going relationship and
good repayment record from these counterparties. The

Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired as
of 31 March 2018 is as follows:

—E-N\F

2018

FET

HK$'000

3 4% 380 5 SR 1B Neither past due nor impaired 12,113
BHTE30H Less than 30 days past due 220
BHE31H Z90H 31 to 90 days past due 421
BHI91HZE180H 91 to 180 days past due 200
BHEI180H £365H 180 to 365 days past due 167
1,008

13,121

3 380 H o R MEL 2 PR LRSS TR PA S A 3 RS2
RBRZERHFS -

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of counterparties for whom there was no

recent history of default.
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18. FEUWRRFR R H b UK ()

ERMERREZEBRRE-JHEREERE
RERZEH2BIHFHER HNEEE
EVEEREHRERNDARERT AT 2
Bl RIEBELER EEBMEEIEXERZ
LHEBEHRMERE FAEEYENZSHG
FEEMERR -

BE-T-N\F=ZA=1+—-HLFEHH £
RBEEBEHIMNT

18.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent counterparties that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold

any collateral over these balances.

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during

the year ended 31 March 2018 were as follows:

—E-N\F

2018

FET

HK$'000

ROEA—H At 1 April 27
BERESE Reversal of impairment losses (5)
R=BA=+—8 At 31 March 22

R=ZZB-NF=ZA=+—H  ERKREERK22,000
BLIEREARNEREEACHRE - BREE
AHBEzERANERNMERSE S FHHE
B MREEENME AR YEZE BT
FULE o Bt - REBE B RER22,000/8 THE
REFRIE o

FEBE-ZE-NE=ZA=+—-HLFEZE
W BR R % B Al B WK 2 BB RT ik B B R B A
29 °

At 31 March 2018, trade receivables of HK$22,000 were
individually determined to be impaired. The individually
impaired receivables related to counterparties that were in
financial difficulties and management assessed that none of
these receivables is expected to be recovered.
Consequently, specific allowances for doubtful debts of
HK$22,000 were recognised.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables for the year ended 31 March 2019 are set out in

note 29.
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ROGHRREAE 19. BANK BALANCES AND CASH
—E-hF —E-N\F
2019 2018
THET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
GFHBEE=EAR Deposits with banks within three months to
FH 2 RITFA maturity when placed = 16,000
RITERRRS Cash at bank and in hand 30,720 46,173
REEUBRRAR2RAER Cash and bank deposits in the consolidated
RITFERUARREE statement of financial position and cash
BER8RZHER and cash equivalents in the consolidated
ReZEY statement of cash flows 30,720 62,173

FHEE-Z-NFZA=+-HLEFEZR
TS ZEENEFBERMEE29 -

FE A5 R R B HL At BB A 5K

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Details of impairment assessment of bank balances for the

year ended 31 March 2019 are set out in note 29.

—E-NEF —E-N\F

2019 2018

THERT FTET

HK$’000 HK$’000

FE A BR X Trade payables 5,070 7,345

glRE Deposit received 3,227 3,338

EstEA Accrued charges 24,186 22,999
FE A FE 42 IR IR SRR TE Amount due to a non-controlling

shareholder 1,800 1,800

H {th FE 1S X Other payables 4,924 7,436

39,207 42,918
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20. ENERAREMENST (&) 20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)
BAFERBRERREREER RERLEE The amount due to a non-controlling shareholder is
EERHE - unsecured, interest free and has no fixed repayment terms.
R|BEMR - REZAHFAE2BIRAZER As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
BOMOT : trade payables, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

—E-hE —B-NF

2019 2018

FTHET THERT

HK$’000 HK$'000

30BR Within 30 days 1,559 3,301
31HZ90H 31 to 90 days 205 625
#BiE90H Over 90 days 3,306 3,419

5,070 7,345
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21. EEFFEHR (BEE) BE 21. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS) LIABILITIES
RAEFEEAEVERRREIZELEFRESH The components of deferred tax (assets) liabilities
(BEE)eBEzARBIREBEZEHMT ¢ recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

position and the movements during the year are as follows:

FESMER
FERHE
Depreciation AER REERz  WEAFZ
in excess of BREN  MERE  ARRE  ROWEA
therelated  Eff#1%  Unrealised Write- Future  Undistributed
depreciation  Revaluation profits on downof  benefit of profit of Lh
allowances o properties inventories  inventories tax losses  subsidiaries Total

TEL TEn TE T TET TER TEL
HK§'000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK§'000

R-E-tEMA-A At 1 April 2017 (5,768) 86,064 (2313) (2,073) (1,794) - 74,116
BED (A Nk (Credited) charged to profit or loss (403) 1,921 367 561 - 2207 4,673
REDOR Charged to reserves - 12,028 - - - - 12,028
RZB-NEZA=+-R At31 March 2018 and
RZE-NEMA-H 1 April 2018 (6,171) 100,013 (1,946) (1,512) (1,794) 2,227 90,817
BEBGIA) R (Credited) charged to profit or loss (316) 2,327 (250) 1,162 - (1,993) 930
REPNR Charged to reserves = 10,503 = = = = 10,503
RZB-RE=B=+-F At31 March 2019 (6,487) 112,843 (2,196) (350) (1,794) 234 102,250
—E-NF —E-N\F
2019 2018
THET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
RGEE P HARRRER Z Net deferred tax assets recognised in the
EIEFTBHREE SR consolidated statement of financial
position (600) (3,437)
REEHBRRKRERZ Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the
ELEFEHEEFE consolidated statement of financial
position 102,850 94,254

102,250 90,817
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21. BEFRBH (EE)EE(HE) 21. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS) LIABILITIES (continued)
AERGEEEATEELEFETFERZER Included in unrecognised tax losses is an amount of
Z=FANEAZ7IES,924,0008 T (ZF— N HK$8,924,000 (2018: HK$7,813,000) which can be carried
F:7,813,0008 %) AHEEBEFERZ forward up to three years from the year in which the loss
BERZAFRMEMRZIET8,055,0008 T (ZF was incurred, an amount of HK$78,055,000 (2018:
— )\ 168,543,000 T) R BELEBEFE HK$68,543,000) which can be carried forward up to five
BrERZTERMERZAES895000%E T years from the year in which the loss was incurred and an
—Z— N\ : 3,830,000/ 7T) - RIBWEBIHE amount of HK$5,895,000 (2018: HK$3,830,000) which can
R 87 %E150,984,0008 T (=& — \&F : be carried forward up to ten years from the year in which
129,757,000 7T ) 3t % j& m Bf o the loss was incurred. The remaining balance of
HK$150,984,000 (2018: HK$129,757,000) does not expire
under the current tax legislation.
22. fB& 22. BORROWINGS

FEEERRTEREARTIAAEE All the secured bank borrowings were repayable as follows:

“B-NEF —E-N\F

2019 2018

THET FET

HK$’000 HK$'000

—FREPEEZ Portion of term loans due for repayment
BHEFR I G within one year 581 581

—FRIPEBZMBRER  Term loans with a repayment on demand

BERRZEHRER clause due for repayment after one year
(My=E) - (note):
—FREWMEFR After 1 year but within 2 years 581 581
MERELFR After 2 years but within 5 years 5,330 5,911
5,911 6,492
6,492 7,073
M BRRDREERBZEAABEERA Note: The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment
FstE  UEAARMEZRERBERRZ dates set out in the loan agreements and ignore the effect of

EE- any repayment on demand clause.
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B8 (&)

MRZBE-AE=F=+—H  A&EEZRTE
&5 LA BRME 4 {830,300,0008 T (=& — N
& 125,670,000 ) 2 LB EEY ZEE
WERAQATRBZERERKA -

FEARTEERANAETEALNANBEAR
ZHMBRRLEREE 2Lk - WAKEERE
BRH AREREEAEFRRITER - K
Eliﬁﬁﬁti rEBIFREREZER -BH
ERBETRAREE 2 E-DHBRRME
CRIE-NFZA=+—-H LEERE

22.

BORROWINGS (continued)

At 31 March 2019, the bank borrowings of the Group were
secured by legal charges over land and buildings with an
aggregate carrying value of HK$30,300,000 (2018:
HK$25,670,000) and guaranteed by the Company.

The secured bank borrowings are subject to the fulfilment
of covenants relating to certain statement of financial
position ratios of the Company’s subsidiaries. If the Group
were to breach the covenants the secured bank borrowings
would become payable on demand. The Group regularly
monitors its compliance with these covenants. Further

Eﬁﬁﬁ#ﬁfﬁfﬂﬁﬁz H(ZBE-NF E) o details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are set
out in note 29. As at 31 March 2019, none of the
covenants relating to the secured bank borrowings had
been breached (2018: nil).

EEENRE 23. PROVISION FOR ONEROUS CONTRACTS

—E-nE BN
2019 2018
TERT TER
HK$’000 HK$'000

RMA—H At 1 April 1,898 13,014

FARE Provision made during the year 3,652 1,986

FREBAEE Provision utilised during the year (1,089) (13,102)

R=B=+—-8 At 31 March 4,461 1,898

FEEHBRBEBRMNREB 2 ETIER2BRESE
BHELERE - REZZEH  BITERER
ZAABRERABBZEEHETHERS
FEEZEBENE - Bt BESHOBBEER
B - MASEEECEAREER - A
B ESEBETRGHEAEHR (DR —F
EMF) 2HEEEURMEEAREAEDA -
AEEEMBEEIRENKEER TR AF
BEAESRREARLIEEGESA -

The provision was made for onerous lease contracts for
certain stores of the Outside Hong Kong operation. Under
these contracts, the unavoidable costs of meeting the
obligations exceed the economic benefits expected to be
derived from sales generated by these stores. Consequently,
a provision for onerous contracts was recognised in profit
or loss. Should the Group continues to operate the relevant
stores, the above provision will be utilised through fulfilling
the lease obligation under remaining lease term which
ranges from less than one year to two years, as well as
associated costs. Should the Group reaches agreement for
early termination with the relevant landlords, the provision
will be utilised upon the settlement from early termination.
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24. BA 24. SHARE CAPITAL
EERBBITRAE Authorised and issued share capital
—E-NF —E2-N\F
2019 2018
IR 2 B R EE
Number ot Number &5
of shares Amount of shares Amount
TR FTHET TR FTHET
000 HK$’000 ‘000 HK$'000
EE Authorised:
BREEOIETZ Ordinary shares of
ZBER HK$0.01 each 1,000,000 10,000 1,000,000 10,000
BRTRARE: Issued and fully paid:
REEBRBERNEER  Atbeginning of the year and
at end of the year 287,930 2,880 287,930 2,880
ERRFEAFEERTHERZRE - B The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
AAEEZLERITE-—ERER - FEERE dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to
BREADNRzRGBEEZERDEER one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.
25. RIKE R E 25. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

AEERBEEECEFIELBE ST EEMD 7
REB(EBRI EBRHEERNEAZEES
R ABEETE ((REETE)) - BES
FEABEBUSTEAEE ZRAEMRICRIKE
2o RERELTE EXRESESEARES
BEWAZ%MZTEMEDR BESABRBANK
A LPR%A30,000/8 T  BESFTE 2 HRTIAD
BEB -

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a
defined contribution retirement scheme administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.

Contributions to the MPF Scheme vest immediately.
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25. RIRBRIEE (&)

TEZHMBARC2HEHTBFER ZRE
AETE - KEMBARARTEESEES
2B TEELZAZEIMR - HFRTIEE
S

REBEEEB CHWBARZEECRESH
HAEY TRNEIRAIEE < REMIUG
HHELRAMSEAEHUGTIZES
FERBEZoWER  BRUERERNE
IREBRZEARKERFA -

o

>=

TN

77

RRF IR E A R 2 & T2 8E iR UE A
BePRABEHB (HRIEE]) - HEL
AREIREXREFM 2 ETEILEFRL
BEHT > REPROESKE - ERIESD
ZHEETABERN - WEARTEMERE
HEERRAINRNERAR ZBRALEE—DH
BERE -

BRLEES  AREELBEMERESRKE
MRz HMEREE -

RERFRGE 2 HRRELERTTABEA -

25.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS (continued)

The subsidiaries in the PRC participate in a defined
contribution scheme organised by the local government.
These subsidiaries are required to make contributions at
certain prescribed rates of the relevant PRC employees’
salaries to the scheme. Contributions to the scheme vest

immediately.

Employees of the subsidiary carrying on business in Taiwan
chose to participate in a defined contribution scheme
governed by the Labour Pension Act of Taiwan. This
subsidiary contributes at 6% of the total salaries of the
participating employees who have chosen to participate in
the defined contribution scheme, the contribution deposited
into individual pension accounts at the Bureau of Labour

Insurance of Taiwan.

Employees of the subsidiary in Singapore participate in the
Central Provident Fund scheme (the “CPF”) organised by
the government of Singapore. This subsidiary and its
employees are required to contribute a certain percentage
of the employees’ payroll to the CPF. The contributions are
charged to the profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the CPF. The subsidiary has no
further obligations for the actual pension payments or

post-retirement benefits beyond its contributions.

Save as set out above, the Group has no other material
obligations to make payments in respect of retirement

benefits of the employees.

Contributions to the defined contribution scheme are

charged to profit or loss when incurred.
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XERE

REZZE-AFTA FAEEREB-FIWEL
A(EEMBLR]) EERN  HEW—EH/
HREBRBETBEINITHRESE AR EM 2
RSB ERELRERLER - EXEE
BEEZEMSHAERCEETBWBELQR -
RFERAERBEZSUBRBRRTIBEHER
PE BBNBARBEREBRELLMAR
EMEE - AKECEBIREORERRE
REDE ARAESKEFEQNLEE IR
FMERER -AUR-ZBE-NF=ZA=+—
A ER AR R RATIREE -

8
BEARERE

26. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

In October 2015, a subsidiary of the Group in Hong Kong
(the “Hong Kong Subsidiary”) received a notice that it was
being sued by a fabric manufacturer under a writ of
summons in the High Court of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region in respect of alleged infringement of
copyright. The generally indorsed writ of summons was
subsequently served on the Hong Kong Subsidiary but the
statement of claim has not yet been served up to the date of
issue of these financial statements and the Hong Kong
Subsidiary continues to deny any liability in respect of the
above claim. An external counsel has been engaged to
defend the said claim and the directors of the Company
will continue to seek advice from the Group’s external
counsel. No provision has therefore been made in respect
of this claim as at 31 March 2019.

. COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments

“B-NEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
THET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000

PUIBE  BMERRE
RESHMBHRRETN
BRBEHEzZEARATH

Capital expenditure contracted for but not
provided for in the consolidated financial

statements in respect of acquisition of

property, plant and equipment 627 42
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27. &iE (&) 27. COMMITMENTS (continued)
ReBERE Operating lease commitments
KEBEERAHEA The Group as lessee
RBEHR REFTTHRBRCEHEERERRE At the end of the reporting period, the total future minimum
Tz HERERNHEENT ¢ lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are

payable as follows:

—E-NF —E-N\F

2019 2018

FERT FHER

HK$’000 HK$'000

—F R Within 1 year 85,105 82,120
—F®ERFR After 1 year but within 5 years 72,021 55,124
157,126 137,244
TEERKEHEERETWE - 2SHEHO— The Group leases a number of properties under operating
BRAL AP —E=F - leases. These leases typically run for an initial period of

one to three years.

BRENEZEZHERESRN  KEEBEARSE In addition to the minimum lease payments disclosed
THEVHBLE -—EWRAILEABEENR above, the Group has commitments to make rental
B2 A - payments at a percentage of revenue for certain leased

properties.
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EIE ()

RERERE (A

FEEER LA

RIBEMR - AEBEBFFT U T RRRE
MM

27. COMMITMENTS (continued)
Operating lease commitments (continued)
The Group as lessor
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future minimum

lease payments:

—E-NF —E-N\F

2019 2018

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$’000

—FR Within 1 year 1,623 4,092
—FEZBHER After 1 year but within 5 years 534 1,278
2,157 5,370

EREE-RUSHH-—FE=F - FHELE
HEYTaEasgEsEE-

ETRRER

FEEEREFA CERERIREREEEN
BERBHELCEEELE  tMBEBERR
KERBEZEMRBRBEBRUSERASNE
BRE BESRRALEELEEAHMIFOE

RA & o

AEERBTEREANERLERRERE U
EEfEE  SRROBEBEEEREF RN
EXRR 2 EBEFE  tEBEERENE
EHERRBELRAE -

The leases typically run for an initial period of one to three

years. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

28. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk

and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in

economic conditions.
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ETRBRERE (&)

REZZB-NEHE AEEFEA-ZE-\F2
R BEERHRAERBULERFTRRESKFRE
NRBESHE - BEFIABRESKT X
SETABRKNTRRZBRESHE - BITHR
7 BEEHEBREIHEEEIB MRS K

3 o

28.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

During 2019, the Group's strategy in monitoring its capital
structure, which was unchanged from 2018, was to
maintain a sufficient cash level to meet its liquidity
requirements. In order to maintain or adjust the cash level,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends payable to
shareholders, issue new shares, raise new debt financing or

sell assets to increase the cash level.

SR IT A 29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
ERMITAZESR Categories of financial instruments
=EF-NF —E-N\F
2019 2018
FHET FiEx
HK$’000 HK$'000
EMEE Financial assets
85 A 2N Amortised cost 80,128 116,654
EHMas Financial liabilities
1 65 R AR Amortised cost 21,513 26,992

SREBEENEHRBE

FE RBpEE ANEREBRBDEREE
X EFEBBRPEL - ARBEAAEZ
ZERREAEBEEEZSARMRAZME
EEREMNELNR T -

EEm R B EF S
FEEzFERREIERBBWIRNR - Atk
W BERRITHER - AEBLESFHEM
BRI AMEEERER  UWEEZETH
EEMEENEERR -

Financial risk management objectives and policies

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. The
Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to

manage these risks are described below.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables, other receivables, deposits and bank balances.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with these

financial assets.
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29, 2RI A (4E)

cREREENENREE (&)

= B /2 & R 6 (8 5P 15 ()
AEEFEERESFHRERTAEERER
NEAMSASEEEZMHERNEREER
RREGEMBRARFABZTRCEIAEHE
ERIREE -

FEW IR

ZEHETEURESELET  URE IR
FTHEAFRAR - HBEREFERWIRRE
BA(EERERAFHE BEQXAREE) &
e FERR  AEEEEECERNMEEER
B EERE FEFMRAMBEZER - M
HARREURER B WA BER - i BE
BERR AREEEERISHEENEHRH
AREEEE - UERFETTWRE S EFEHEH
HURERE - RETBEFERE3N - BE
BEDBRAATREEEmMEL - RZB—N\F
MA-HEABEBYBMEENEIRRE £
SEFBUGRRR BB R EEBYBRE
ZRBORMAENAMEERSRE - BETEBE
BERATENEBYIRZINEREESE £
SEHEHFIRARNBEENR  X2EB
FENTE BRI ENSHERREBA
AT B RN 2 AT E AT B B ETAE - REEEE
BRDBEBRURREFFHABEBRREYN
Kbt ARBANHABERARFE N
AESHAEEER (FlnRREBZANEERT
FEAT BB RO B B AT I FROB IR BRAER)
EHRAR FAEEEEEERZSARMEER
AEREARNENREYIRRES -

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will
cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties provided by
the Group is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

Trade receivables

Retail sales are mainly on a cash basis, either in cash, debit
card or credit card payments. In order to minimise the
credit risk in regard of balances with trade receivables
debtors, which mainly consist of credit card institutions,
department stores and malls, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the management of the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
debt at the end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. Under HKAS 39, impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. Upon the application of HKFRS 9
on 1 April 2018, the Group applies simplified approach on
trade receivables to assess for ECL prescribed by HKFRS 9.
To measure ECL of trade receivables at amortised cost, the
Group applies internal credit rating for its counterparties
and they are assessed individually by reference to past
default experience, current past due exposure of the
debtors and an analysis of the debtors’ current financial
position. The ECL rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors
and are adjusted for forward-looking information (for
example, the current and forecasted global economy which
reflect the general economic conditions of the industry in
which the debtors operate) that is available without undue
cost or effort. Such forward-looking information is used by
the management of the Group to assess both the current as
well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting
date.
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¢®MIAE)
TEEREENENREE(E)

EEm R A E TS ()

FEW R ()
ERFERENEZEERABRER  BAHFH
=EBEAFREBEERSINDERFRN
RIT/ERBEE - I AEEEEERS
REEBAREFFHR2BELTBERENER
WARBAEEERMELHAR - EEERERY
RRABTRE - FHit - RARNEERABUER
FBERELREKXR B 28T5 o

AEESEBURREHETFEERR - R=F
—hE=ZRA=1+—-B  FXEEFSREAHFH
FARHFIHNRBUERRDBH11% (ZF
—N\F 17%) K30% (ZZ—\F 128%) o &
SEEERRYERZEHFINRELER
e

BEMRBEA R ENEHEE
MREMEWRRUREESRAMEEME A2
AEEREELEECE BEERURES
Z-NFOA-HURMEEERFMHATE
MER - B ERERAY AT YD 1T E B
aHh o AR BRERARE  AREEMERRE
BENAREEERLBEAREGEERR - B
BASEEERE 2E  HttRERREEZ
AHNEEBBELREKR-

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

The credit risk on credit card receivables is limited because
the counterparties are bank/financial institutions with high
external credit ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies. In addition, the management of the
Group considers those not credit-impaired trade receivables
were collectible based on historical observed default rates
over the expected life of the debtors and adjusted for
forward-looking information. Therefore, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that allowance for impairment
on trade receivables was insignificant and thus negligible to

be made.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on the trade
receivables. As at 31 March 2019, 11% (2018: 7%) of trade
receivables is due from the Group’s largest counterparty
and 30% (2018: 28%) of trade receivables is due from the
five largest counterparties. The management of the Group
closely monitors the subsequent settlement by the

counterparties.

Other financial assets at amortised costs

For other receivables and rental and other deposits, the
directors of the Company make periodic individual
assessment on the recoverability of significant balances
based on historical settlement records, past experience, and
also available reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information starting from 1 April 2018. The directors of the
Company believe that there is no material credit risk
inherent in the Group’s outstanding balance of other
receivables and deposits. Based on assessment by the
management of the Group, the ECL for other receivables

and deposits is insignificant.
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29, 2RI A (4E)

TEEREENENREE(E)

EEm R R B EFE ()

Atz BEg A BT HEE (F)
RITERTFHNE TEEFRESRUBES
RENRTEHMEE MARANESRAR/ZS
RAUEHEBNEERREE -

REBEZEE
FEECHRAENERRDESER  UHE
REEFRZARSRHE  UWEFEREHZR
BEEFEE-

TREFEERBEPREHEE BT
WEMBE YATARTRAESRE (B8
BRANEERFHEZANEX L MEFEHE
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EDMEE -

HRAARESARRTEFASTHEERDE
BEERN ZHNFEERRXRRZBTEE
SRS EERMER - Bt - RASRT
BEMS  TROBNBEFRBEBEER 25T
WRFRBERE » UARMHERATERLER
MEERERFENYRENEKE 2
@,

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Other financial assets at amortised costs (continued)

The bank balances are placed in various authorised
financial institutions either with high credit ratings or good
financial background and the directors of the Company
consider the credit risk of such authorised financial

institutions is low.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and

longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash outflows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on

rates current at the end of the reporting period).

As the directors of the Company do not expect the banks
would exercise the rights to demand repayment, the bank
borrowings subject to repayment on demand clause are
expected to be repayable based on the specific repayment
terms. Hence, for these bank borrowings, the following
tables show the contractual undiscounted cash outflows
according to the specific repayment terms and, separately,
the impact to the timing of the cash outflows if the lenders
were to invoke their unconditional rights to call the loans

with immediate effect.
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TEEREENENREE(E)

REBE % /E b ()

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk(continued)

=
2019
TRARRRERI
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
-F& LEZ:
R BEER
BEEA More than ~ More than
REE —ER  1yearbut 2 years but KEE
On Within ~ lessthan less than &3 Carrying
demand 1 year 2 years 5 years Total amount

TEn TEn TEn TEn - TR
HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000

RRERERRIER
ZBTEE

Bank borrowings subject to repayment
on demand clauses:

EREETHEN Scheduled repayment - 800 783 5,539 7,122 6,492
ERETREER Trade and other payables - 15,021 - - 15,021 15,021
- 15,821 783 5,539 22,143 21,513
REEFAZER Adjustments to disclose cash flows on
B EEERINRITER bank borrowings based on lender's
BeREvRERR right to demand repayment 6,492 (800) (783) (5,539) (630) -

6,492 15,021 - - 21,513 21,513
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29, 2RI A (4E)

TEEREENENREE(E)

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
HEBEZEE (E) Liquidity risk(continued)
-\
2018
ATARTRRER
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
—#% WER
{EmER BRER
REBA More than ~ More than
B EIH —E®  Tyearbut 2 years but EEE
On Within less than less than st Carrying
demand 1 year 2 years 5 years Total amount
TiEn TiEx TiEn TiEn TiEn TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRERBERUIR Bank borrowings subject to repayment
ZRITRE: on demand clauses:
EREEFHEN Scheduled repayment - 780 763 6,233 7776 7,073
R R E AT Trade and other payables - 19,919 - - 19,919 19,919
- 2069 763 6233 27695 2699
REEHAZER Adjustments to disclose cash flows on
HBEEENSRTEE bank borrowings based on lender’s
BengzhaEng right to demand repayment 7,073 (780) (763) 6,233) (703) -
7,073 19,919 - - 26,992 26,992
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29. €@ T E (&) 29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
TREAREENENRBE (&) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
FZE 7 B Interest rate risk
REBzAZEBRTFERBFETHEAES - The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from its

variable rate financial liabilities.

(i) FELZ (i) Interest rate profile
TRAAEERBEHRAEERERE The following table details the interest rate profile of
kemaBzRELEE the Group’s interest-bearing financial assets and

financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period:

—E-hE —E-N\&§
2019 2018
BBRAZR BIRA=
Effective TER Effective TER
interest rate HK$’000 interest rate HK$'000
EEFESHER Fixed rate financial assets:
—RITER - Deposits with banks - - 1.1% 16,000
A Pl = Variable rate financial liabilities
- BERARTEE - Secured bank borrowings 3.58% 6,492 2.56% 7,073
(i) BBEDH (i) Sensitivity analysis
REZBE-AFZR=+—8  @ErRRE At 31 March 2019, it is estimated that a general
BRA 12 n20@EE L - i H tbfrE A& decrease/increase of 20 basis points in interest rates,
HZHEHTE  MAKEZRBEEEE with all other variables held constant, would have
80 R AR B s R g R A K decreased/increased the Group’s loss after tax and
11,0008 T (ZZ2—N\F : KRB B EAR have increased/decreased retained profits by
RERERE I, B A 15,0008 7T) ° HK$11,000 (2018: increased/decreased of profit after

tax and retained profits HK$15,000).
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TEEREENENREE(E)

T &7 bz (F)

(ii)  BUEE 7T ()
ERBREITETR - BRRAZZHRER
SHREE  WARTZETA  £4AEE
RZEEERSRANEZERE  AESHAE
EHEFEBRHEE (BR)EN (RREE
A ERLE AR AEELETEREY
BHRERANDABHEZEMESTA
HEBEIMUEEEERESTAMBRN
DMARENZRERE - EEERS  AREFL
ZEBARERRBBFE AR  SRBE
DMEEBRRERT S LELRMY -

E¥mb
BETENERRRAEGEMSRAEEEERERN
WEEE W LSNIIMNETHE - EBAEEEH S
WEK AEBEEALEIIEEDNBR - A
o EREEEENERE  AENFERKEE
BEHERINERRE -

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis (continued)
The sensitivity analysis above indicates the annualised
impact on the Group’s (loss) profit after tax (and
retained profits) that would arise assuming that the
change in interest rates had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to floating rate
instruments which expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk at that date. The analysis does not
take into account exposure to fair value interest rate
risk arising from fixed rate instruments as the Group
does not hold any fixed rate instruments which are
measured at fair value in the financial statements. In
management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure

during the relevant years.

Currency risk

Certain trade and other payables are denominated in
foreign currencies other than the functional currency of the
relevant group entities, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need

arises.
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29. €@ T E (&) 29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
TREAREENENRBE (&) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
EmbE (&) Currency risk (continued)
(i) FEREZEEERE (i) Exposure to currency risk
AEEBUNBTHENEBEEREGR The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
REDRNREEDT : denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the end

of the reporting periods are as follows:

&E =R+
Assets Liabilities
—E-NFE ZE-NF ZEBE-hFE ZZE-N\F
2019 2018 2019 2018
FER TER TERT TER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT Euros = - (1,133) (5,067)
BT Hong Kong dollars 85,779 86,377 (62,977) (60,660)
AR Renminbi 719 - (6,237) (44,991)
(i) BBEEDH (i) Sensitivity analysis
TRETAEERBEHRFEERR The following table indicates the instantaneous change
BMeIEEEZREISBHAER 2R in the Group’s (loss) profit after tax and retained
Bz (B18) &R RREEF 2 8K profits that would arise if foreign exchange rates to
& CRREtAREHESTE - which the group entities have significant exposure at

the end of the reporting period had changed at that
date, assuming all other risk variables remained

constant.
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29, 2RI A (4E)

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

TREAREENENRBEK (&) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
B (&) Currency risk (continued)

(ii)  BUEE 7T ()

(ii) Sensitivity analysis (continued)

—E-E —E-N\E
2019 2018
Ex Ex
th BHEEE  REEA LH BBEEN  REBEN
(F5) B By (F&) Y D
Increase (W) (%) Increase ($8m) ($8m)
(decrease) Increase Decrease  (decrease) Decrease Decrease
in foreign  (decrease) (increase) in foreign (increase) (increase)
exchange inloss inretained  exchange in profit in retained
rates after tax profits rates after tax profits
TR TR iR iR
HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B Euros 10% 95 95 10% 423 423
(10)% (95) (95) (10)% (423) (423)
BT Hong Kong dollars 5% (613) (613) 5% (731) (731)
(5%) 613 613 (5%) 731 731
ARH Renminbi 5% 231 231 5% 2,052 2,052
(5%) (231) (231) (5%) (2,052) (2,052)
EEERS  HARFRZEMRRERRBEE In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
EzRE  SREINHEFMERRTS L unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as
B|ARM - the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the relevant years.
RAE Fair values
FEERMIAYREANR-_Z-NER=-Z All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
—N\FZA=Z+—HZARBTEBEEREER materially different from their fair values as at 31 March
ZEHEYIE - 2019 and 2018.
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30. ARG 30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
BREZLSHRBREMBAFIREZRZ R

Sho AEEFTLTHEREBALZRS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered

into the following material related party transactions:

(@ EBEEBATRZIXS (@) Transactions with related companies
ZE-NF ZE-N\F
2019 2018
FERT FHER
HK$’000 HK$'000
ETIEEZ2HERAX Rental expense for staff quarter (1,200) (1,200)
REWMEZHERA Rental income from investment properties 175 494
ZEEHRBROEL Rental expense for a retail store and
HEMX office space (54) (144)
PR 75 & W A Service fee income 1,012 764
REEMX Service fee expense 411) 91)
MEERABE Purchase of fashion apparels and
B fef AR B % C accessories from a joint venture (5) (24)
BEMm Purchase of cosmetic goods — 2)
B8 B B o) L B Purchase of fashion accessories (24) (16)
65 5 155 AR 8 % B 8 Sales of fashion apparels and accessories
TEEQH to a joint venture - 432

BHEBART L 2HSRA - HEHX
BRBEWA - REEM AR EEFIIIZR]
WA HERBZIRREE -

companies were at terms mutually agreed by the

parties concerned.

Rental income, rental expense, service fee income,

service fee expense, purchase and sales with related
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30. ARG ()
by TEEBAEMS
ITEEBAEME (RERMEFI0MBEX
FFRRBHITEESZHE)WOT

30.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel,
representing amounts paid to the Company’s executive

directors as disclosed in note 10, is as follows:

—E-hF —E-N\F

2019 2018

FHET FTHET

HK$’000 HK$’000

ZHESER Short-term employee benefits 10,648 11,346
BREEEERA Post-employment benefits 54 56
10,702 11,402

31. MEERBMELRGEZHE

TREAAEERETHIELEBEZZBF
B BRASRIRSLEDH BMETDHELE
BEARERANPRRBRERENAEE 4R
BRENRERADERABETHZREREZ
&BE-

31.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of

cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.
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31, MEEDFELABIYE (&) 31. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (continued)

EAKRE  EAAE  ROTHE Bt
Dividend Interest Bank
payable payable  borrowings Total

TET TER TET TET
HK$'000  HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$'000

(BiaE22)

(note 22)
RZE-—tFWMAE—H At 1 April 2017 - - 7,654 7,654
CEIRKE (KtzE12) Dividends declared (note 12) 8,638 - - 8,638
B R R E KA Finance costs recognised - 189 - 189
MERESRE Financing cash flows (8,638) (189) (581) (9,408)
MRZE-NF=ZB=+—H At31 March 2018 = = 7,073 7,073
EEIRKE (KfzE12) Dividends declared (note 12) 11,517 - - 11,517
B R RE KA Finance costs recognised - 510 - 510
BERERE Financing cash flows (11,517) (510) (581) (12,608)

RZIZE-AFE=B=+—H At31 March 2019 - - 6,492 6,492
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32. ARFETEMBARAZFHE

RZBE-NERZZE-NF=ZA=+—H ' &
EECFTEWNBLARZHEBHEHIRTY B3R
BEBEN FEE2RABERALTER -

32. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY

Details of the Group’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March

2019 and 2018 are set out below, the class of shares held is

ordinary unless otherwise stated:

BRARAR
BA /R
MR BRe#E AEBEERE
kg Particulars of Attributable equity
Place of issued and fully interest to the Group
NCES incorporation paid-up share/ —E-hE -—z-)\5 TEXE
Name of company and operation registered capital 2019 2018 Principal activity
Moiselle (BVI) Limited ABERREE 2,001 100% 100% REER
British Virgin Islands BREEIZR Investment holding
2,000 shares of USS1
each
EEARAA B2 500,008 3 100% 100% FEE MRS REH
Beautirich Limited Hong Kong 500,000 shares Retail of fashion apparel and
accessories
EHRERBERLA &k ETERTR 100% 100% MHRBRAEEE
Boo Gie Garment Factory Limited Hong Kong 200,000 & 17 Sourcing of materials and
LER property holding
1,800,001 R IR 43
Deferred non-voting
200,000 shares
Ordinary 1,800,001
shares
FHREARAT R 28B4 100% 100% REZR
Boogie Holdings Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Investment holding
BE (B8 ARAT B 4R - 100% B s AR EF R B B B 55
Bright Star (HK) Limited Hong Kong 4 shares (&) Trading of fashion apparel
(note) and accessories
HEERERLT B2 24 100% 100% REER
Busy Win International Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Investment holding
ARERAT B2 1008 B3 100% 100% REZRK
Fortress Power Limited Hong Kong 100 shares Investment holding
HRERARA A R 300,000 B 3 100% 100% BEEHRHREH
Grand Bridge International Limited Hong Kong 300,000 shares Retail of fashion apparel and

accessories
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32. ARFRETEMBAR 215 (&)

32. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

BRTRAR
BA/ R
AL BRe#E AEEELRE
REEHE Particulars of Attributable equity
Place of issued and fully interest to the Group
CES incorporation paid-up share/ —g-h&E -—z-)\& IEXE
Name of company and operation registered capital 2019 2018 Principal activity
LERARARAT 3 1,000,000 B 3 100% 100% RERR
iMaroon International Company Limited Hong Kong 1,000,000 shares Investment holding
WERERRAF B2 10,0008 3 100% 100% %A
Landwin Investments Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares Property holding
Rt (B8 BRAT B 1,000,000 & 100% 100% FEHDRHKEH
Moiselle (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong 1,000,000 shares Retail of fashion apparel and
accessories
FRARERAF B2 BB 100% 100% RELR
Moiselle International Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Investment holding
Moiselle Singapore Pte. Ltd. 3 I0R 500,000 R B REE 100% 100% SR RA R
Singapore Eipik:o Retail of fashion apparel and
500,000 shares of SG$1 accessories
each
REERAT ABERRES IREEIXR 100% 100% BERERHKEH
Onexcel Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 Retail of fashion apparel and
accessories
BRRERRAT S 500,000 & 100% 100% FEEHREKEH
Pearl Jade Investments Limited Hong Kong 500,000 shares Retail of fashion apparel and
accessories
REEARBRAF R 500,000 & 13 100% 100% FEEHREREH
Perfect National International Limited ~ Hong Kong 500,000 shares Retail of fashion apparel and
accessories
RK Moiselle Fashions Limited B 14298 B 4 70% 70% HEEHRHREH
Hong Kong 1,429 shares Wholesale of fashion apparel
and accessories
BERERRAF B 1,000 B 43 100% 100% NEHE
Shirley Investments Limited Hong Kong 1,000 shares Property holding
EERERRAF B 41 {2 100% 100% REER
Sky Well Investment Limited Hong Kong 4 shares Investment holding

161
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32. ARFETEMBAR 218 (&)

—N¥E=B=+—HI4E For the year ended 31 March 2019

32. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

BROTRARE
R/ R
B BReHE ARERERE
REBELY Particulars of Attributable equity
Place of issued and fully interest to the Group
NCEE incorporation paid-up share/ —2-f& -—z-)\F5 IEEE
Name of company and operation registered capital 2019 2018 Principal activity
ARERERAT R A EA25,000 100% 100% ZEEHRHRES
Treasure Light Fashion Limited Macau BT Retail of fashion apparel and
Registered capital accessories
MOP25,000
RPRERRAF S 1,000,000 | 100% 100% BEHEREHKEH
United Sino Investment Limited Hong Kong 1,000,000 shares Retail of fashion apparel and
accessories
REBMERAT S 500,000 3 100% 100% REER
Viewgood Overseas Limited Hong Kong 500,000 shares Investment holding
RERREK (RY) BRAF PE 2,100,00078 ¢ 100% 100% RERK
Ming Fung Garment Manufacturing The PRC HK$2,100,000 Manufacturing of garments
(Shenzhen) Company Limited*
RIESREHBERAA: i AR#500,0007 70% 70% FERMBEH
Shenzhen Baozhuo Fashion The PRC RMB500,000 k]

Wholesale Co., Ltd.* Retail and wholesale of
fashion apparel and
accessories

AEXERTERRA T i AR%2,000,0007T 100% 100% FERBREM
Shen Zhen Graceful Fashion Retail The PRC RMB2,000,000 TRER R Fo e

Limited Company* Retail and wholesale of
fashion apparel and
accessories

HERE (RY) BRAT G 8,400,000/ ¢ 100% 100% SHERK
Yubao Fashionable Dress (Shenzhen) ~ The PRC HK$8,400,000 Manufacturing of garments

Co., Ltd.*

MiEE - R

RIEFEEPEMZIEBERSE -

—E-N\FEXAZ +tEI BE (58)
BRAF(EBE]  —RUBEERER
EE@E%’%_ZD\T) Fﬁiﬁﬁtﬂ’%% =

Zﬁiﬁs:ﬁoiﬁiﬁ’\thﬁaﬁﬂﬁ@ﬁfa
356,000 7T X EAEREEQTRE
3,100,000 7t LA K FE{ BR 7R I EL At FE 13 5%
3456000,%75 AEEZSHEMB AT
Z W 35356,0005%8 JT ©

These are wholly-owned foreign investment enterprises
registered under the laws of the PRC.

Note: On 27 June 2018, Bright Star (HK) Limited (“Bright Star”), a
company engaged in trading of fashion apparel and
accessories, was disposed to an independent third party at
zero consideration. Bright Star had a net liabilities of
HK$356,000 which contains mainly of amounts due from
group companies of HK$3,100,000 and trade and other
payables of HK$3,456,000 as of the date of disposal and a
gain on disposal of subsidiary of HK$356,000 was recorded
by the Group.
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33. ARAZPHBMR T 33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY
—E-NF —E-N\F
2019 2018
TERT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
IRBEE Non-current assets
RKTE AR 2 s Interests in subsidiary 61,671 61,671
FE U BT B 2 R FRIE Amount due from a subsidiary 217,094 220,027
278,765 281,698
REEE Current assets
H {th FE WX Other receivables 10,139 10,197
RITEBRRERES Bank balances and cash 94 837
10,233 11,034
REEE Current liability
H {th FE 3 =X Other payables 1,176 1,328
RBEEFEE Net current assets 9,057 9,706
EEFHE NET ASSETS 287,822 291,404
BEXRFE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
[N Share capital 2,880 2,880
e Reserves 284,942 288,524
REREZEE TOTAL EQUITY 287,822 291,404
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KANTZHBERRER (&) 33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)
ARAREEE Movement in the Company’s reserves:
R =R
B 12 % 8 BEHEL RE & F EmEE
Share Contributed Retained Total
premium surplus profits equity
THET TER TER TER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
GE) GEAD)
(note (i) (note (ii))
R-ZB—tF Balance at 1 April 2017 65,327 61,572 164,765 291,664
MA—Hz#&#
FREARFLE Total comprehensive income - - 5,498 5,498
for the year
IR (BtaE12) Dividends (note 12) - - (8,638) (8,638)
R-ZZE-NEF Balance at 31 March 2018 65,327 61,572 161,625 288,524
ZA=T—BZ&R
FRE2EKRERE Total comprehensive income for = = 7,935 7,935
the year
R E (BitEE12) Dividends (note 12) - - (11,517) (11,517)
RZE-NF Balance at 31 March 2019 65,327 61,572 158,043 284,942
ZRA=t+-Rz#&H
B &E Notes:

() MREHESHSAAE ROBERTIIRT
RABZBRR HEEEREDIKKRE BB
B ARAANBEEIREPRAEEAEE
BBRPEEZEH - RIVEE AT
BRANBRSD 27 XAEHDIK

(il BEHBHKERRBER-ZE-_F-A=-+H
RAEMZEBEAMBBZMBEARERZ
EHEEFERALRMEESREZCR
TR zEEZEZHE  BHBSZ ARER
MIEEAR o

(i)

(if)

In accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium account is distributable to
shareholders of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. The
share premium may also be distributed in the form of fully
paid bonus shares.

The contributed surplus represents the difference between the
then combined net asset value of the subsidiaries acquired
over the nominal value of the shares of the Company issued
in exchange thereof pursuant to a group reorganisation which
became effective on 25 January 2002. The application of
contributed surplus is the same as the share premium.
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Shop D on G/F

Bo Ming Court

14 Tin Hau Temple Road
North Point

Hong Kong
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Bl

R RHA395%

MEAEE—H

10#85-73% &

Workshop Nos. 5-7, 10th Floor
Kodak House 11

39 Healthy Street East

North Point

Hong Kong

58

BB
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BEHDOH

26125317

Part of 26th Floor

Hing Wai Centre

No. 7 Tin Wan Praya Road
Aberdeen

Hong Kong
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REMAR
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Shop

Warehouse
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=

Warehouse
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Lease term

EHAE

Short lease
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Long lease

RHIRE

Medium-term lease
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biihe I
Address

BB

NLEE

RAE

BINET81-875%

SERIEAE

8#BAKRBE

Factory Units A & B on 8th Floor,
Island Industrial Building,
Nos. 81-87 Tung Chau Street
Tai Kok Tsui

Kowloon

Hong Kong

R ELRY

BHE

0 B R R

SR ES

4184102E

Unit 4102 on 41st Floor,
Excellence Times Plaza
Yitian Road and Fuhua Road
Futian District

Shenzhen, the PRC

FEIRI T RZEABIEE
REREF1.6BE3E3CR3IDE
Units 3C and 3D on 3rd Floor,
Tianfa Building, F1.6

Tian’an Chegongmiao
Industrial Zone,

Shenzhen, the PRC

FERYITAREAFIEBARELE

H2.8FE5HE5A5 ~ SA6KR5A7E ~ 63 6A5 ~ 6A6

6A7RR6ASE LR 77A9 ~ 7A10 ~ 7A11 »
7A12 >~ 7A13R7A14E
Flats 5A5, 5A6 and 5A7 on 5th Floor,

Flats 6A5, 6A6, 6A7 and 6A8 on 6th Floor
and Flats 7A9, 7A10, 7A11, 7A12, 7A13 and
7A14 on 7th Floor, Jiutai Apartment H2.8,

Tian’an Chegongmiao
Industrial Zone,
Shenzhen, the PRC

REAR

Existing use

Rl

Warehouse

D>
bt

Office

=
o
it

Office

BE

Quarter

A

Lease term

FHEE

Medium-term lease

FHEE

Medium-term lease

hHIEE

Medium-term lease

FHEE

Medium-term lease
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Group Financial Summary

The following is a summary of the published results and assets
and liabilities of the group for each of the five years ended 31

March 2019.
E RESULTS
BE=ZA=+—-HLFE
Year ended 31 March
ZE-hWEFE ZZT-NFE ZZE-—tE ZB-RE Z2-HF
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
TERT TERT THET TERT FAER
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
g Revenue 251,021 290,576 280,397 327,996 419,965
R (BR)RR (Loss) profit from operations (44,905) (21,622) (55,135) (62,308) 6,642
R & A Finance costs (510) (189) (185) (158) (1)
FEIREEE N T 2% Share of results of an associate - - - (419) (188)
BiEEE AT 2%E Share of results of a joint venture 131 577 (2,632) (4,087) 505
HEKRB AT ZWE  Gain on disposal of subsidiary 356 _ _ _ i
THRBENR Net valuation gains on land and
REMEZ buildings and investment
HEWZFEE properties 27,790 27,594 10,052 15,558 9,682
BRECAT (B51B)BA  (Loss) profit before taxation (17,138) 6,360 (47,900) (51,414) 16,640
Friess Income tax (2,703) (5,099) (4,578) (5,101) (5,309)
FRER)EF (Loss) profit for the year (19,841) 1,261 (52,478) (56,515) 11,331
THIALREL Attributable to:
AARERRR Equity shareholders of
the company (19,717) 2,007 (52,000) (56,515) 11,331
FERER Non-controlling interests (124) (746) (478) - -
Fr(EE) ER (Loss) profit for the year (19,841) 1,261 (52,478) (56,515) 11,331
BR(BE) EF (Loss) earnings per share
2K Basic HK$(0.07)8B 7% HKS0.01E 7T HKS(0.18)B 7T HKS$(0.2087 HK$0.048 7T
e Diluted HK$(0.07)8 7 HKS0.01 T HKS(0.18)B T HKS$(0.208 7T HK$0.048 7T
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Group Financial Summary

EEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
MR=BA=+-—H
At 31 March
ZE-NE ZEBE-NF ZE—+tF ZB-RF ZE-HF
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

TER TER TER TER TER
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

W% MEKRE  Property, plant and equipment

DRREMF and investment properties 685,169 645,818 554,472 536,790 522,076
HittEE Other assets 27,775 13,565 21,397 23,446 18,888
ELERBHEE Deferred tax assets 600 3,437 3,831 6,187 8,375
RBEERE Net current assets 75,509 103,524 104,742 165,768 249,605

BERARBEMEEME Total assets less current
liabilities 789,053 766,344 684,442 732,191 798,944

*¥REBEE Non-current liabilities (102,850) (94,254) (77,947) (73,403) (69,867)

686,203 672,090 606,495 658,788 729,077

(g Share capital 2,880 2,880 2,880 2,880 2,880

fitt6 Reserves 684,071 669,834 603,493 655,908 726,197

FATERZRFRIEM Total equity attributable

BRRER to equity shareholder of
the company 686,951 672,714 606,373 658,788 729,077
FERER Non-controlling interests (748) (624) 122 - _

HRERES TOTAL EQUITY 686,203 672,090 606,495 658,788 729,077
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